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KING ISLAND

Midway between Victoria and mainland 
Tasmania, 120 kilometres or forty-five 
minutes flying in either direction, the 
Island has become an ideal destination 
for a weekend escape.

The Island, which is 64 kilometres north 
to south, and 27 kilometres east to west, 
has a population of approximately 1,600 
permanent residents, of which 800 reside 
in the township of Currie which is situated 
on the west coast. There are two other 
towns, Naracoopa on the east coast, and 
Grassy to the south east.

From our little paradise, some of 
Australia’s finest natural foods are 
produced. We are probably best known 
for the production of fine beef, superior 
dairy produce, magnificent seafood and 
premium rain water products. King Island 
Dairies, with its award-winning cheeses, 
the abundant seafood and King Island 
Beef have all helped to establish King 
Island’s reputation for fine foods.

Tourism is thriving with the two new 
internationally recognised golf courses at 
Ocean Dunes and Cape Wickham. 

The Kelp Industry is a major part of the 
Island economy with tourism becoming 
the growth industry in recent times.

The Island offers a great number of 
attractions and activities which include 
visits to the museum, lighthouses, 
Sealers’ Wall, Calcified Forest, pheasant 
shooting and mutton bird seasons, horse 
racing, the King Island Imperial 20 - a 32 
kilometre coast to coast foot race, the 
Festival of King Island, the King Island 
Long Table Festival, recreational fishing, 
diving, bushwalking, beachcombing and 
much more.

Tourists appreciate the Island’s natural 
attractiveness, exquisite cuisine, the 
surfing, fishing, challenging golf, maritime 
history and the relaxed way of life.

King Island has an interesting history, 
commencing with its discovery in 1798. 
Its geographic location in Bass Strait 
has resulted in a rich maritime history 
associated often with shipwrecks and 
tragedies that are well documented.
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At the western entrance to Bass Strait lies an 
idyllic place known as King Island. An Island rich 
in history, with shipwrecks, lighthouses and 
jagged reefs, bountiful with long stretching sandy 
beaches and lush green pasture.



MAYOR’S 
MESSAGE
It has been a year of reflection for the 
King Island Council and community. The 
community’s decision to change the 
majority of Councillors and the Mayor 
during the year affected the efficiency 
of the Council. Subsequent resignations 
and retirements of key staff, including 
the General Manager, further disrupted 
workflows and affected staff morale.

The Council commenced the recruitment 
of a new General Manager during the 
year and successfully completed this 
with the appointment of Greg Alomes in 
August 2019.

Whilst a number of major projects, 
including the sealing and re-sheeting of 
several roads continued, in the main, the 
year has been one of returning to basics.

Achieving a team attitude between 
Councillors and between Councillors 
and staff has been a priority. Substantial 
work and time was spent in developing 
stronger governance and policy 
frameworks to ensure that in future we 
work in a structured way. This avoids 
misunderstandings and inefficiencies 
and gives an underpinning for a stronger 
Council.

A strong Council with motivated teams 
will achieve completion of the numerous 
environmental and governance legacy 
issues still outstanding. As well, it will 
allow Council to work effectively with 
government and commercial interests 
to take advantage of the $105 million 
in development approvals lodged 
with Council during the year; and to 
reinvigorate the King Island voice in 
discussions with our shipping and airline 
partners.

In summary, whilst we have been 
presented with several challenges in the 
recent past, I believe the Council and 
the King Island community are moving 
towards a very positive future, which is a 
journey of great promise and opportunity. 

I would like to take this opportunity to 
thank all staff and Councillors for their 
support and I look forward to their 
continuing future support. I would also 
like to recognise the contributions of the 
outgoing Councillors who served during 
the year. 

Julie Arnold
Mayor
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OUR VISION
King Island – ‘A place of opportunity, lifestyle and beauty’.

OUR VALUES
These are the values that will guide our choice and behaviour as we seek to 

implement our vision for the area:

OUR GUIDING PRINCIPLES
The King Island Council will be known for its Visionary Thinking 
and Strategic Leadership. We are a Council with a shared vision 

who work with and for the local community. We work by the 
following principles:

Cohesive 
decision making 

– with the 
strength to 

review decisions

Valuing our 
independent 
views – and 

recognising that 
healthy 

respectful 
debate can lead 

to better 
decisions

Being agile, 
flexible and 

professional in 
responding to 

emerging issues

Driving 
decisions 
through 

informed    
input and 

engagement 
with 

stakeholders

Communicating 
decisions in an 

open and 
transparent way

Being ‘one team’ 
and standing by 
group decisions

EQUITY 
amongst all

UNITY
We are in this 

together

RECOGNITION
appreciation and 

acknowledgement

COMMUNICATION 
and consultation

OUR WORKPLACE 
environment - A 

great place to work

Executive 
Assistant

Mayor 
Julie Arnold

General 
Manager 

Councillor Gina Green

Councillor Ian Allan

Councillor Vernon Philbey

Councillor Duncan McFie

Senior 
Staff 

Senior 
Staff 

Senior 
Staff 

Senior 
Staff 

Councillor Jim Cooper

 Councillor Sarina Laidler

Councillor Thor Clemons

Councillor Luke Agati
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ACTING GENERAL 
MANAGER’S REPORT
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Our continuing drive for operational 
efficiencies and the management of 
systems and processes has seen Council 
review the way it buys goods and services, 
which has led to the development of a 
suite of documents, including templates 
and standard contract terms. 

To ensure our purchasing processes 
continue to be transparent and to 
improve efficiency further, Council has 
also signed up with TenderLink, an online 
purchasing portal. This system has been 
used for public tenders issued from 1 
January 2019 and requests for a quote as 
required.

The development of a draft Asset 
Management Plan, Policy, and Register 
will facilitate and define Council’s 
intention, methodology, and approach 
to managing our assets. The finalisation 
of which will support Council’s core 
objectives of ensuring maximum value 
is obtained from asset investment and 
operation. As part of its policy framework 
and register review, several other new 
policies, GM Directives, and Frameworks 
have also been introduced.

The last financial year has been marked 
by significant change, with multiple shifts 
both at an operational and governance 
level. While these changes have required 
adjustment, Council’s commitment to the 
King Island community and visitors to the 
island has not changed. 

Focused on continually improving 
our service provision through 
greater engagement, service request 
response times, and utilisation of vital 
communication channels, Council has 
implemented a number of improvements 
during the FY18/19 year.

To increase the transparency of 
information share with our community 
and allow for greater access to Council 
decisions and debate audio recordings of 
Council meetings are now made available 
on our newly revamped website.  
Additionally, workshopped items and a 
service request report are also included 
in Council Agendas. 

Fruitful community engagement occurred 
through multiple channels, and across 
various areas,  which feeds into our 
Strategic, Recreation, Dog Management, 
Waste and Land Use Plans. Some of which 
have been completed, with others yet to 
come online.
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Our key focus areas 
now and into the 
foreseeable future are:

Continued diligence, review, and 
reflection are critical for the long-term 
sustainability of the Council in meeting 
both its social and financial obligations, 
particularly with limited resources – both 
human and financial. 

To that end, I want to express my sincere 
thanks to the staff for their dedication 
and effort during the year and similarly 
acknowledge the significant contribution 
of our Elected Members. 

I would also like to thank the King Island 
community for their on-going support 
over these last twelve months and 
encourage continued engagement with 
Council.

Kate Mauric
Acting General Manager

A Risk Management Strategy, Policy, and 
Materials Risk Report was developed and 
endorsed by Council, to take a ‘whole of 
business’ view of risk to mitigate, and 
protect our community, staff, and assets. 
A Risk Management Committee has also 
been formed to oversee the alignment 
of plans, processes, people, technology, 
and knowledge with the evaluation and 
management of the risks faced by the 
organisation

Ensuring the airport can safely and 
efficiently satisfy the community’s 
requirements into the future is of critical 
importance, with an airport master plan 
completed to guide development and 
investment at the airport for the next 
10-20 years. Revaluation of the asset 
and pavement strength testing was also 
undertaken during the year, with the 
management structure of the facility also 
under review.

Special Committee of Council, King Island 
Brand Management Group (KIBMG) 
brought Robert Heazlewood, then 
Executive Director of Brand Tasmania, to 
the Island to join the Long Table Festival 
in February 2019. With that immersive 
experience fresh in his mind, Robert 
then facilitated a brand workshop to help 
on-Island producers, and stakeholders 
better understand and promote our 
Island brand into the future.

The successful delivery of Council’s Youth 
Week and Australia Day events, along 
with support and participation in the 
King Island Show, FOKI, and Imperial 20, 
demonstrates Council’s commitment to 
providing and supporting events that 
bring our Island community together.

Crucial priority areas framed the 
development of the FY19/20 Annual 
Plan & Budget and allowed for staged 
prioritisation of non-compliance 
shortfalls, as well as legislatively required 
environmental, waste, and long-term 
strategic planning. 
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COUNCILLORS
OUTGOING FY 18/19

Mayor Duncan McFie
1 July - 7 November 2018
Committee Membership
Brand KI Management 
Group, KI Airport Advisory 
Committee, KI Recreation 
Complex Committee, Cradle 
Coast Authority, KI Scheelite 
- Consultative Committee,  
Local Government 
Association of Tasmania

Deputy Mayor Jim Cooper
1 July - 7 November 2018
Committee Membership
KI Airport Advisory 
Committee, Cradle Coast 
Authority, KI Shipping Group

Councillor Jim Benn
1 July - 7 November 2018
Committee Membership
KI Cultural Centre Advisory 
Committee, KI Historical 
Society, KI Tourism 
Incorporated (KITI)

Councillor David Bowling
1 July - 7 November 2018
Committee Membership
KI Tourism Incorporated 
(KITI)

Megan Chivers
1 July - 7 November 2018

Councillor Royce Conley
1 July - 7 November 2018
Committee Membership
TasWater, Local Government 
Association of Tasmania

Councillor Ira Cooke
1 July - 7 November 2018

Councillor David Munday
1 July - 7 November 2018
Committee Membership
Brand KI Management 
Group, KI Historical Society, 
KI Recreation Complex 
Committee, KI Shipping 
Group

Councillor Kirsty Russell
1 July - 7 November 2018
Committee Membership
KI Sporting Management 
Committee, KI Natural 
Resource Management 
Group (KINRM), Naracoopa 
Sand Mine – Consultative 
CommitteeCOUNCILLORS
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COUNCILLORS
INCOMING FY 18/19

Mayor David Munday
8 November 2018 - 20 February 2019
Committee Membership
KI Recreation Complex Committee, 
Cradle Coast Authority, 
KI Shipping Group, Local Government 
Association of Tasmania

Mayor Julie Arnold
10 April 2019 - Present

Committee Membership
Brand KI Management Group, KI 
Recreation Complex Committee, 
Cradle Coast Authority, KI Scheelite - 
Consultative Committee, KI Shipping 
Group, Local Government Association of 
Tasmania

Acting Mayor Julie  Arnold
21 February - 10 April 2019
Committee Membership
KI Recreation Complex Committee, 
Cradle Coast Authority, 
KI Shipping Group, Local Government 
Association of Tasmania, Brand KI 
Management Group, KI Scheelite - 
Consultative Committee.

Deputy Mayor Julie  Arnold
8 November 2018 - 20 February 2019
Committee Membership
Brand KI Management Group, KI 
Scheelite - Consultative Committee

Deputy Mayor Luke Agati
10 April 2019 - Present

Committee Membership
KI Natural Resource Management Group 
(KINRM)

Councillor Luke Agati
8 November 2019 - Present
Committee Membership
KI Natural Resource Management Group 
(KINRM)

Councillor Ian Allan
8 November 2019 - Present

Committee Membership
KI Youth Advisory Committee, KI 
Sporting  Management Committe

Councillor Thor Clemons
8 November 2019 - Present

Committee Membership
KI Tourism Incorporated (KITI)

Councillor Jim Cooper
8 November 2019 - Present

Committee Membership
KI Airport Stakeholders Group, 
TasWater, KI Shipping Group

Councillor Gina Green
8 November 2019 - Present

Committee Membership
KI Historical Society

Councillor Sarina Laidler
8 November 2019 - Present

Committee Membership
KI Cultural Centre Advisory Committee, 
KI Regional Development Organisation 
(KIRDO), Naracoopa Sand Mine - 
Consultative Committee

Councillor Duncan  McFie 
8 November 2019 - Present

Committee Membership
Brand KI Management Group

Councillor Vernon Philbey 
10 April 2019 - Present

Committee Membership
KI Sporting  Management Committee, KI 
Airport Stakeholders Group
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SENIOR COUNCIL STAFF
FY18/19

PROGRAM AREA TITLE NAME START 
DATE

FINISH 
DATE

Airport, Operations, Culture 
& Communications, Growth 
& Strategy, Finance & 
Community Services, Health, 
Safety & Environment

General Manager Substantive Troy Brice 23/4/18 19/12/18

General Manager Acting Kate Mauric 10/12/18 4/8/19

Airport Airport Manager Interim 
(Contractor)

Glen Robinson 
(Jasko Airport 
Services)

20/06/18 30/9/18

Airport Manager Interim 
(Contractor)

Michael Wells 
& Rod Sullivan 
(Burnie Airports 
Corporation)

1/10/18 30/6/19

Operations Director 
Infrastructure 
Services

Substantive Tony Melis 14/12/15 30/10/18

Senior Manager 
Operations

Interim 
(Contractor)

Neil Strickland 29/10/18 18/01/19

Senior Manager 
Operations

Substantive Tas Loane 17/12/18 5/3/19

Senior Manager 
Operations

Interim 
(Contractor)

Neil Strickland 25/2/19 4/4/19

Senior Manager 
Operations

Interim 
(Contractor)

Glen Walker 26/3/19 21/6/19

Senior Manager 
Operations

Acting Gordon Denholm 24/6/19 Current

Culture & Communications Culture & 
Communications 
Manager

Substantive Emma Little 20/11/17 Current

Growth & Strategy Growth & 
Strategy Manager

Substantive Helen Thomas 1/5/17 Current

Finance & Community 
Services

Director 
Corporate & 
Community 
Services

Substantive Zoe Behrendt 16/4/12 21/8/18

Director 
Corporate & 
Community 
Services

Acting Kate Mauric 21/8/18 30/11/18

Senior Manager 
Finance & 
Community 
Services

Substantive Kate Mauric 30/11/18 14/04/19

Senior Manager 
Finance & 
Community 
Services

Interim 
(Contractor)

Carolyn Pillans 15/04/19 04/08/19

Senior Manager 
Finance & 
Community 
Services

Substantive Kate Mauric 05/08/19 Current



ORGANISATION CHART
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General Manager Health, Safety & 
Environment

Road 
Maintenance 

& Construction

Infrastructure 
& Works

Waste & 
Quarries

Asset 
Management

Technical 
Compliance

Ranger 
Services

Airport

Airport 
Operations

Operations Culture & 
Communications

Arts & 
Culture

Communications

Tourism

Destination 
Marketing

Events

Growth 
& Strategy

Economic 
Development

Grants

Brand 
Management

Procurement

Finance & 
Community 

Service

Finance

Rates

Customer 
Service

Human 
Resources

Development 
Services

Environmental 
Health

Emergency 
Management

Corporate 
Strategy

Information 
Technology

Community 
Development
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Development
In a continued upward trend, 45 planning approvals totalling $105 million in 
planned developments were approved, including Cape Wickham Links, King 
Island Scheelite Mine and the King Island District Hospital. This was in addition 
to the Export Abattoir appeal being dismissed during the year. Commencement 
of the build phase of these projects during the next financial year will give a 
substantial boost to the community’s employment and economic strength. 
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Funding
In June, Council was advised of the conditional availability of $ 6.3 million in 
grants. Opportunities to gain the most benefit for the community are being 
explored including the possibilities of a Currie Community Sports Facility/
Gym Redevelopment, upgrade of Grassy Sports Complex/Oval upgrade and 
development of a Service Hub. 

Brand Protection
The Council’s Brand Management Group worked with King Island Seafood 
and a number of King Island cray fishermen to successfully oppose Craig 
Mostyn Group’s application to trademark a logo with the words “King Island 
Lobster”. This opposition, supported by Brand Tasmania and off-Island crayfish 
processors, cited the importance of this industry to our Island’s economic and 
social viability and the risks such a trademark would have to the industry. The 
application was withdrawn, with King Island cray fishermen still able to sell 
their catch as King Island Lobster without the risk of penalty.
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Tourism
The Council’s Culture & Communications 
Manager assisted King Island Tourism Inc (KITI) 
to develop a promotional magazine focused 
on the signature events held on King Island 
during the year. With cover artwork specifically 
targeting the golfing market, copies were direct 
mailed by KITI to Australian courses; used in 
Council presentations to Grant Bodies, and 
distributed to State and Federal politicians and 
tourism partners to promote King Island.

Arts & Cultural Development 
Renewed focus on arts and culture in the community and for tourists occurred 
with the appointment of Andrew and Dianne Blake as part-time curators and 
the subsequent reinvigoration of the Cultural Centre, exhibitions and artist 
in residency program. King Island’s reputation as an artistic and creative 
destination has increased off island through connections with our Australia 
Day Ambassador, Brian Ritchie (music curator of MONA) , the inclusion of King 
Island in Ten Days on the Island’s 2021 Program and the inaugural Festival of 
Art, Culture & Environment (FACE of KI) which enjoined art, music and poetry 
with our endangered bird species.
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Planning-Roadmap for Future 
Land Use and Development

The endorsement of the King Island Land 
Use Plan will provide the roadmap for 
our future land use and development, 
allowing Council to respond to changing 
trends, use new information to make 
informed decisions and empowering the 
Island to use its resources wisely.
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Update of the Municipal 
Emergency Management Plan 

Council has endorsed the updated 
King Island Municipal Emergency 
Management Plan 2019 which comes 
into effect in the event of an emergency 
including bushfire, storm or disaster 
event.

Workplace Health and Safety
Council has introduced significant 
improvement to its organisational 
safety culture to ensure all workers 
returned home safely each day. A 
Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) 
Advisor was recruited, Zero Harm 
methodology introduced, new Personal 
Protection Equipment Uniforms issued 
and Advanced Safety Training and 
a Safety Management System now 
in use. Extensive training has also 
been undertaken to upskill staff and 
provide them with the appropriate 
knowledge and skill to drive continuous 
improvement.
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DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS
36 development applications were received during the financial year, with 44 approvals* 
granted and no refusals issued. Approvals ranged from farm sheds to mining infrastructure 
and major tourism developments. The number of approvals is consistent with previous 
years, with a total value of approvals at approximately $105 million.

A breakdown of development applications received during the FY18/19 financial year is 
provided below:

APPLICATION TYPE No.
Dwelling and Dwelling Additions
General Residential Zone 0

Low Density, Rural Living, Environmental Living & Village zones 4

Rural Resource 7

Residential Outbuildings
General Residential Zone 1
Low Density, Rural Living, Environmental Living & Village zones 1
Rural Resource 1
Other Development
Agricultural Sheds 5
Subdivision and Boundary Adjustments 5
Multiple Dwelling Developments 0
Commercial 10
Tourism (including visitor accommodation) 4
Industrial and Utilities 4
Other 2

Total Applications 44

*Applications may be received in one financial year and approved in another, resulting in a variance between applications 
received and approved for the financial year. 

BUILDING APPLICATIONS
The number of building applications and notifications for the financial year was 27.

APPLICATION TYPE No.
Dwelling 1
Dwelling Additions & Alterations 5
Outbuildings 5
Farm Buildings 2
Visitor Accommodation 3
Commercial/Industrial 7
Miscellaneous Structures 3
Demolition 1
Total 27



CUSTOMER SERVICE 
REQUESTS AND COMPLAINTS

FY18/19
A total of 65 service requests were received, with 43 completed and 22 pending.

A total of 9 complaints were received, with 8 completed and 1 pending.

Category
Customer 

Service 
Requests

Completed Pending Complaint Completed Pending

Trees 6 6 0 1 1 0

Roads & 
Footpaths 35 24 11 5 4 1

Animal 
Control 3 2 1 0 0 0

Waste 5 2 3 0 0 0

Recreation 10 4 6 1 1 0

Other 4 3 1 1 1 0

Building 2 2 0 0 0 0

Parks 0 0 0 1 1 0

TOTAL 65 43 22 9 8 1
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STATUTORY REPORTING 
REQUIREMENTS
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MEETING ATTENDANCE - SECTION 72(1) (CC)
 

Ordinary 
Meeting

Closed 
Council

Council 
Workshop

Special 
Meeting

Closed 
Special 

Meeting
AGM Total 

attendance

Total Held 
12

Total Held 
8

Total Held 
17

Total Held 
1

Total Held 
5

Total Held 
1

Total Held 
44

*possible 4 * no meetings *possible 3 *possible 1 *possible 2 * no meetings *possible 10

Cr Jim Benn 2 n/a 2 0 1 n/a 5
Cr David 
Bowling 3 n/a 2 1 2 n/a 8

Cr Megan 
Chivers 4 n/a 3 1 2 n/a 10

Cr Rocyce 
Conley 3 n/a 0 0 0 n/a 3

Cr Ira Cooke 3 n/a 3 0 1 n/a 7
Cr Kirsty 
Russell 3 n/a 1 1 2 n/a 7

*possible 8 *possible 4 *possible 9 *possible 1 *possible 4 *possible 1 *possible 27

Cr David 
Munday 7 3 8 0 3 1 22

*possible 12 *possible 8 *possible 15 *possible 1 *possible 5 *possible 1 *possible 42

Cr Jim 
Cooper 11 6 14 1 4 1 37

Cr Duncan 
McFie 11 7 13 1 4 1 37

*possible 8 *possible 8 *possible 14 *no meetings *possible 3 *possible 1 *possible 34

Cr Julie 
Arnold 8 8 13 n/a 3 1 33

Cr Luke Agati 8 8 14 n/a 3 1 34
Cr Ian Allan 7 7 14 n/a 1 1 30

Cr Thor 
Clemons 8 8 13 n/a 3 1 33

Cr Gina 
Green 7 7 14 n/a 3 1 32

Cr Sarina 
Laidler 7 7 12 n/a 3 1 30

*possible 3 *possible 3 *possible 5 *no meetings *no meetings *no meetings *possible 11

Cr Vernon 
Philbey 3 3 5 n/a n/a n/a 11

Note: Following the Council elections in October 2018 Cr J Benn, Cr D Bowling, Cr M Chivers, Cr R Conley, Cr I Cooke & Cr K 
Russell left office. Cr J Arnold, Cr L Agati, Cr T Clemons, Cr G Green and Cr S Laidler were sworn into office on 8 November 
2018. Cr I Allan was sworn into office on 13 November 2018. Cr D Munday resigned 20 February 2019. Cr V Philbey was 
sworn in on 10 April 2019.

ELECTED MEMBERS  - SECTION 72 (1) (CB)
Total allowances paid to Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Councillors during the FY18/19 were 
$116,121.

Under the Local Government Act Section 72 1(ba) & (bb) there were 5 code of conduct 
complaints during FY18/19, all of which were dismissed. The total cost met by the Council 
during the preceding financial year in respect to all code of conduct complaints was $7,141.60.
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GRANTS 
AND BENEFITS

Section 77 

King Island Council allocates annual funding to support community projects and programs 
that have a clear community benefit. Council determines its allocations during its budget 
deliberations, with applications open all year round.

A number of organisations also receive substantial in-kind support from Council.

A total of $62,020 (inclusive of figures on pg 23) was made available in FY18/19 for the 
following projects that benefit or support the community.

ORGANISATIONS FUNDED IN FY18/19

King Island Netball Association
To provide members of the Association with the opportunity to travel off Island to 
compete.

$2,000
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Festival of 
King Island
The purchase of 
lighting equipment 
to further upgrade 
the staging of this 
large-scale event.

$2,000

Independent 
Artists & Makers 
of King Island 
For the engagement of 
former resident Angie 
Strickland to develop Street 
Art for the Currie Skatepark.

$2,000

Our Lady 
Star of the 
Sea Parish
For the purchase of 
a dough mixer and 
display cabinet to 
support fundraising 
efforts.

$1,431
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King Island 
Community 
Radio
To assist with 
finalising the fit-out 
of the mobile studio 
van.

$2,500

King Island 
Clay Target 
Association
For the installation 
of a toilet and septic 
system for use 
by members and 
spectators.

$2,500
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King Island 
Council of 
the Ageing 
Inc
To assist with the 
renovation of unit 
2/26 Main Street.

$1,500

Community 
Care Fund
To provide short-
term assistance to 
those in crisis with 
food vouchers, 
pharmacy costs etc.

$2,000

Foundations 
to Flourish
To pay for a Positive 
Education specialist 
to facilitate one of 
six free community 
wellbeing workshops.

$1,500
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Pegarah 
Country 
Women’s 
Association 
King Island 
To assist with the cost 
of rewiring the CWA 
Hall in Edward Street, 
Currie.

$2,500

King Island 
Field 
Naturalist 
Inc
For the control of 
invasive species 
and weeds in the 
Pegarah Reserve.

$2,550

King Island 
Imperial 20
To help facilitate 
the delivery of 
this iconic annual 
event.

$1,500
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King Island
Community 
Car  
The annual running costs 
of the community car.

$7,749

Swimming 
Association of 
King Island
For the collection    of 
waste oil to heat the 
Grassy Pool.

$3,790

King Island 
Natural 
Resource 
Management 
Group Inc
To assist with the 
management of 
the island’s natural 
resources.

$16,500

King Island State Emergency 
Services 
Meeting Council’s obligations under the act 
and helping to ensure a safe island.

$10,000 
+ a further commitment of $5,000 pending 
July 2019



PROCUREMENT 
REPORTING  
The following tenders and requests for quote for supply of goods or services valued above 
$50,000 excluding GST were issued and / or closed during FY2018-19.

REF: DESCRIPTION TERM ESTIMATED VALUE 
EX GST

PROCUREMENT 
PROCESS

KIC2018-007

Design and 
construction of 

aircraft apron at King 
Island Airport

6 months $300,000

Request for Quote
Excemption from 

public tender 
approved by Council 

(241/18)

KIC2019-001

Waste management 
operations and 

compliance 
consultancy

4 months $100,000 Public tender

KIC2019-002 Pearshape quarry 
management plan 4 months $150,000 Public tender

KIC2019-003 Airport management 
services 2 years $220,000 Request for Quote

KIC2019-004 Service Hub Design 
Consultant 6 months $100,000

Public Invitation 
for Expressions of 

Interest

Under sections 13 and 17 of the Code for Tenders and Contracts adopted 15 September 
2015 and the subsequent decision of Council 191/18 made on 16 October 2018, Council is 
required to report details of any contract for the supply or provision of goods or services 
valued above $50,000 excluding GST, and details of any extension of a contract whereby 
Council agreed to extend a contract by an absolute majority and the pre-existing contract 
did not specify extensions.

The table below shows all such engagements during FY2018-19

DATE OF 
AWARD: DESCRIPTION TERM VALUE EX GST CONTRACTOR PROCUREMENT 

PROCESS

06.06.19
Quarry 

Management 
Plan Consultancy

10 weeks $68,768 Marsh Pty Ltd Public Tender

22.05.19

Waste 
Management 
Operations & 
Compliance 
Consultancy

8 weeks $60,130 MRA Consulting 
Group Public Tender

15.04.19

Acting Senior 
Manager Finance 

& Community 
Services

6 months $72,000 CTP Consulting Request for 
Quote

01.04.19 Carting of shingle 1 month $48,000 RW Earthmoving Request for 
Quote
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DATE OF 
AWARD: DESCRIPTION TERM VALUE EX GST CONTRACTOR PROCUREMENT 

PROCESS

26.03.19
Acting Senior 

Manager 
Operations

4 months $50,969 Blackadder 
Associates

Direct 
Engagement

26.03.19 Aircraft Apron 
Design 6 months $72,115 SMEC Australia 

Pty Ltd Select Tender

09.01.19 Rock Crushing 3 years $1,039,760 King Island 
Concrete Public Tender

21.12.18 Supply of 
Bitumen 4 months $129,500 SAMI Bitumen Public Tender

20.11.18 Airport Cleaning 
Services

3 years +
2 x 1 year 
options

$191,625
(3 yr initial term 

only) Lorraine Graves Public Tender

12.11.18 Purchase of Hino 
700 Tipper n/a $180,330 The Gelong Truck 

Company
Request for 

Quote

1.11.18 Accounting 
Services 10 months MDH Accounting Request for 

Quote

25.10.18 Purchase of Hino 
300 Canter n/a $51,727 The Geelong 

Truck Company
Request for 

Quote

1.10.18
Airport 

Management 
Services

9 months $41,000 Burnie Airports 
Corporation

Council approved 
motion

13.09.19 Purchase of 
multi-tyre roller n/a $68,136

T&E 
Underground 

Services

Request for 
Quote

1.8.18
Construction of 
airport freight 

shed
2 months $126,680 CM & GM Lakin 

Builders
Request for 

Quote

30.07.18 Purchase of 
Kubota tractor n/a $92,000 Total Ag 

Solutions
Request for 

Quote
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1993

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1993

Section 72A
Council reports no disputes with the Australian Taxation Office during the financial year 
relating to compliance with GST law.

Sections 72(1) (cd), 72(4) and 72(5)
Public Health Statement

The King Island Council recognises the importance and is committed to protecting the 
health and safety of its residents and visitors. Council is required to undertake numerous 
inspections and monitoring programs to ensure compliance with the Public Health Act1997, 
Food Act 2003 and associated regulations and guidelines.

Council continued the engagement of a contracted Environmental Health Officer (EHO) who 
visited the island three times throughout the year as well as being available via phone and 
email or through development services staff. This equated to 0.09 full time equivalent for 
the EHO and approximately 5% of a full-time employee’s time providing coordination and 
support services. Council’s core Environmental Health functions are:
• Food safety, including registration and inspection of food businesses and education 

through an online training via Council’s web site;
• Disease prevention and control; including immunisation programs through the local 

medical practice and notifiable disease investigations;
• Registration of private water suppliers;
• Licencing and inspection of public health risk activities.

The Environmental Health Officer is also responsible for on-site waste water management 
and level 1 activities such as quarries, sand pits and offal pits under the Building Act 2016 and 
Environmental Management and Pollution Control Act 1994.

The following summarises the activities carried out during FY18/19:

Public Health Act 1997
• 1 Public Health Risk Activity Premises was registered;
• 12 private water suppliers/carriers were registered.

Food Act 2003
• 37 food premises and 3 mobile food vans were registered;
• 32 inspections were completed for food premises registered or notified;
• 12 temporary food stall application were registered.

In addition, 5 assessments were undertaken for new or works to existing on-site wastewater 
management systems.
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
ACT 1993

PUBLIC INTEREST 
DISCLOSURE ACT 2002

Sections 72(1) (cd),
72(4) and 72(5) cont.
Remuneration

Council is to include within its Annual Report a statement relating to the total remuneration 
paid to employees of the Council who hold positions designated by it as being senior 
positions. Total remuneration includes the salary paid, contributions to superannuation, 
fringe benefits and any other allowances.

Senior management total remuneration for FY18/19 can be viewed in Note 10.1 of the 
Audited Financial Statements.

King Island Council’s procedures for dealing with matters under the Public Interest Disclosure 
Act 2002 can be viewed on the website: www.kingisland.tas.gov.au/council/access-to-
information/ or by requesting a copy from staff, on 03 6462 9000.

Public Interest Disclosures FY18/19

The number and types of disclosures made to King Island Council during the year. 0

The number of those disclosures determined to be public interest disclosures. 0

The number of disclosures determined by King Island Council to be public interest disclosures 
that it investigated during the year. 0

The number and types of disclosed matters referred to King Island Council during the year by 
the Ombudsman 0

The number and types of disclosures referred during the year by King Island Council to the 
Ombudsman to investigate. 0

The number and types of investigations taken over by the Ombudsman from the King Island 
Council during the year. 0

The number and types of disclosed matters that the King Island Council has decided not to 
investigate during the year. 0

The number and types of disclosed matters that were substantiated on investigation and the 
action taken on completion of the investigation. 0

Any recommendations made by the Ombudsman that relate to the King Island Council. 0



MISCELLANEOUS

RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2009

No land was donated by Council pursuant to Section 177 of the Local Government Act 1993.

Number of applications for assessed disclosure of information received during FY18/19 1

Number of applications for assessed disclosure accepted for decision 1

Number of applications accepted for assessed disclosure during FY18/19 and decided during 
FY18/19 1

Number of applications accepted for assessed disclosure during FY17/18 and decided during 
FY17/18 0

The number of accepted applications decided during FY18/19 where the information was 
requested to be provided in full 1

The number of accepted applications decided during FY18/19 where the information was 
requested to be provided in part 0

The number of accepted applications decided during FY18/19 where none of the information 
requested was provided 0

Number of external reviews that were requested 2

For the external reviews decided in FY18/19, number where the original decision was upheld 2
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ANNUAL PLAN
2018-2019

Create a sustainable, 
resilient and 
adaptable community; 
through utilizing 
community 
development 
strategies

Support our population 
and future growth 
through public 
infrastructure, services, 
land use and development 
strategies that create a 
connected, sustainable 
and accessible community

Achieve economic 
viability through 
facilitating economic 
development that 
supports appropriate 
and sustainable growth

GOVERNANCE & 
ORGANISATIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT

NATURAL 
ENVIRONMENT

COMMUNITY 
WELLBEING

INFRASTRUCTURE & 
FACILITIES

TOURISM, 
MARKETING & 
EVENTS

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT

Sustainably promote, 
develop and support the 
growth of King Island’s 
tourism

Our Island’s unique 
natural and built 
environment are 
sustainably respected 
and cared for

Provide high quality 
professional governance, 
advocacy and leadership 
together with effective 
administration of Council 
resources
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ANNUAL PLAN 2018-2019
Responsible Officer Abbreviations:
GM = General Manager SMFCS = Senior Manager Finance & Community Services
GSM  = Growth Strategy Manager SMO = Senior Manager Operations
CCM = Culture & Communications Manager TCO = Technical Compliance Officer
DSC = Development Services Coordinator APE = Assets and Projects Engineer
AM = Airport Manager

1. COMMUNITY WELLBEING
Create a sustainable, resilient, and adaptable community; through utilising community 
development strategies.

1.1 OBJECTIVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
To identify, improve and support community development strategies that 
generate benefits for the community of King Island. 

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

1.1.1 Investigate 
competing demands 
for forecasting 
and responding to 
emerging community 
needs.

i. By Sept 
2018

Develop plans that 
prioritise and respond 
to community needs 
expressed through 
consultation and feedback 
processes in past 12 
months.

Completed GM

ii. By Dec 
2018

Develop related costings to 
be included in the budget 
development process.

Discussion occurred 
regarding the budgeting 
development process

GM

iii. By Jan 
2019

Delegate responsibilities 
for implementation of 
plans.

Discussion occurred GM

iv. By Mar 
2019

Delegate responsibility 
for implementing priority 
strategies from KI Airport 
Masterplan 2018.

Completed. Delegated 
responsibility to BAC 
Airport Managers (period 
of contract), Growth 
& Strategy Manager 
and Senior Manager 
Operations.

GM

v. By Jun 
2019

Collaborative relationship 
will be achieved with 
KITI – to facilitate the 
development of a tourism 
marketing plan for KI to be 
driven by KITI.

Marketing Magazine 
produced with two 
print runs to date and 
in negotiation with the 
publisher and David Do 
regarding the reprint 
of the same in Chinese 
and Vietnamese. Also, 
currently working on the 
rollout of the magazine 
content online. Both KITI 
and Council represented 
on a golf strategy 
reference group with 
Tourism Tasmania, Cape 
Wickham Links, Ocean 
Dunes and Barnbougle 
to steer the planned 
three-year campaign that 
will promote Tasmania 
as a world-class golfing 
destination.

GM
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

1.1.2 Encourage 
population stability 
and growth 
by facilitating 
opportunities to 
attract identified 
residential 
development and 
services.

i. Ongoing Evidence of facilitating 
access to residential 
accommodation for 
existing employers and 
new investors/developers

An investment guide for 
local landowners was 
distributed to residents 
and ratepayers in March to 
promote the development 
of residential housing to 
meet the growing need.

GSM

ii. Ongoing Evidence of promotion 
of KI as destination for 
workers and families

Development of the Right 
Fit, First Time worker 
attraction, and retention 
campaign is nearing 
completion.

Image library and content 
is complete.

Finalising accompanying 
words to be published on 
the website shortly.

GSM / 
CCM

1.1.3 Build and support 
our community’s 
capacity to provide 
services, programs, 
and events that 
are responsive to 
community need.

i. By Sept 
2018

Mentor committee 
members and facilitate 
development of a 
Sponsorship package for 
FOKI 2019

Council have been in 
discussion with the Festival 
Committee about grant 
and other opportunities 
and recently provided a 
letter of support for a FRRR 
application.

CCM

ii. On-going Participation in:
• Cultural Centre meetings 

and events

• Cultural Centre, 
Historical Society and 
KITI meetings and events

• Chamber of Commerce, 
KIRDO, KI Shipping 
Group, KI Brand 
Management, Airport 
Stakeholder Group 
meetings and events

• Emergency Management 
meetings and events

• CCM attended in place of 
SMFCS, due to a change 
is responsible office in 
2018

• Attended all except 
the Historical Society 
Meetings

• Attended

• Annual schedule of 
meetings, events, and 
training developed 
with two meetings, one 
event and one training 
completed by June 2019.

SMFCS

CCM

GSM

SMO/ 
TCO

iii. By Jul 
2018

Sponsorship Policy 
developed and 
implemented

Completed CCM

iv. By Sept 
2018

Needs identified from 
community needs 
assessment 2017 
Community Survey 
prioritised

Completed SMFCS

v. By July 
2018

Council grants, programs, 
and processes revised

Completed SMFCS
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1.2 OBJECTIVE COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
To engage with our community through collaborative consultation, 
information sharing and seeking input that informs our decisions.

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

1.2.3 Work collaboratively 
with all levels of 
Government and 
Non-Government 
Organisations 
(NGO’s) to address 
and advocate for the 
emerging community 
needs.

i. Ongoing Evidence of robust 
community consultation 
in the development 
and implementation of 
significant strategies, plans 
and initiatives.

Recreation Plan and Waste 
Management Strategy 
consultation underway, as 
evidenced on Facebook 
and Council website.

GSM

ii. Ongoing Evidence of continued 
collaboration with state 
and federal government 
and NGOs to address and 
advocate for community 
needs.

Periodic meetings and 
discussions with a 
variety of regional, state 
and federal members, 
departments and NGOs. 
The purpose is to identify 
opportunities open to King 
Island and advocate for 
community needs.

GSM

iii. By Sept 
2018

Continued promotion and 
adaptation of the Business 
Opportunities Prospectus, 
in partnership with 
member organisations of 
the DAP Leadership Group.

Finalisation of this 
document delayed. 
Completion expected mid-
2019.

GSM

iv. By Jan 
2019

(Subject to funding from 
BBRF)
Complete Worker 
Accommodation Project, 
inc. lease of up to 7 units 
to KI employers and new 
developers.

It is now incorporated in 
a $5m promise from Ex-
Senator Steve Martin.

GSM

1.2.4 Provide connections 
within the 
community for 
young people to 
remain engaged 
through education 
and employment 
opportunities.

i. Annually Continue to build 
relationships with local 
businesses to facilitate 
opportunities for students 
from the KIDHS.

In progress. SMFCS

ii. August 
each year

Identify apprenticeships, 
traineeships and skills gaps 
from businesses (Utilise 
the King Island Chamber 
of Commerce – King Island 
Workforce Capability 
Study – Final 8 Feb 2017, 
RSC Tourism and The Work 
Lab).

Identify opportunities 
through King Island 
businesses.

SMFCS

iii. By Dec 
2018

Complete acquittal of 
Foundation for Rural 
Regional Renewal grant 
for on-island delivery by 
Tas TAFE of a Cert III in 
Hospitality.

TasTAFE were, 
unfortunately, unable to 
satisfy the requirements 
of this grant project. 
Discussion is now 
underway with the grant 
provider on best next 
steps.

GSM
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2. INFRASTRUCTURE AND FACILITIES 
Support our population and future growth through public infrastructure, services, land 
use, and development strategies that create a connected, sustainable, and accessible 
community.

2.1 OBJECTIVE COUNCIL ASSETS
Review and develop plans and processes with relevant stakeholders

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.1.1 Review the King 
Island Strategy Plan 
2008 and the King 
Island Recreation 
Plan 2008, prior to 
making decisions 
on existing and 
new community 
infrastructure, assets 
and to inform land 
use planning.

i. By June 
2018

Review of Strategy Plan 
2008 (Land Use) completed 
and KI Council Land 
Use Strategic Plan 2018 
developed

Completed DSC

ii. By August 
2018

Engage with Community 
about KI Council Land Use 
Strategic Plan 2018

Responses will be 
considered when finalising 
the plan.

DSC

iii. By 
October 
2018

KI Council Land Use 
Strategic Plan 2018 to 
Council for adoption
TDS 3.1 +3.2.2

Adopted June 2019 DSC

iv. By July 
2018

Engage consultant 
identified in December 
2017 EOI to undertake the 
KI Recreation Plan 2020-29 
project

Completed SMFCS

v. By Jan 
2019

Coordinate consultant’s 
delivery of the KI 
Recreation Plan 2020-29

Extended to December 
2019 due to resourcing.

SMFCS

vi. By Feb 
2019

KI Recreation Plan 2020-29 
adopted by Council

Extended to December 
2019 due to resourcing.

GM

vii. As 
determined 
(Dates will 
be set in the 
Plan)

Implement 
recommendations from 
the KI Recreation Plan 
2020-29

Extended to December 
2019 due to resourcing.

SMO

2.1.2 Revise strategies 
and activities for 
waste management 
including the 
collection, recycling, 
and landfill 
management.

i. By July 
2018

Engage consultant 
identified in December 
2017 EOI to undertake the 
project

Completed GSM

ii. By March 
2019

Coordinate consultant’s 
delivery of the KI Waste 
Management Strategy 
2020-29

Finalisation of strategy 
has been deferred to align 
with the completion of 
compliance assessment.

GSM

iii. By April 
2019

KI Waste Management 
Strategy 2020-29 adopted 
by Council

Finalisation of strategy 
has been deferred to align 
with the completion of 
compliance assessment.

GM

iv. As 
determined 
(Dates will 
be set in the 
Plan)

Implement 
recommendations from 
the KI Waste Management 
Strategy 2020-29

Finalisation of strategy 
has been deferred to align 
with the completion of 
compliance assessment.

TCO
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.1.3 Develop a business 
case rationale and 
policy for fees and 
charges for use/hire 
of Council assets that 
reflect a user pays 
model for equality.

i. Dec 2018 Asset Management Plans 
developed

Draft Completed APE

ii. Sept 2018 To identify applicable 
Council assets and users to 
develop the framework for 
the business case

Revised measure to be 
undertaken in FY19/20 
Annual Plan

SMFCS

iii. By Jun 
2019

User Agreements will be 
in place for any existing 
arrangements

Revised measure to be 
undertaken in FY19/20 
Annual Plan

SMFCS

2.1.4 Maintain Council 
assets in accordance 
with relevant 
planning and policy 
documents.

i. Dec 2018 Develop asset 
management plans 
and policies that meet 
compliance with the Local 
Government Act 1993

Draft Completed APE

ii. Jan 2019 Asset management plan 
and policy adopted by 
Council.

Policy updated – 
Completed

SMO

iii. Mar 2019 Link asset management 
plan to both annual budget 
planning and the Long-
Term Financial Plan

All of these documents 
are part of FY19/20 
Annual Plan (Draft Asset 
Management Plan has be 
completed).

SMFCS

iv. Feb 2019 Implement asset 
management plans (both 
financial and physical 
management)

In progress and continues 
in FY19/20 Annual Plan.

SMO

2.1.5 To source funding 
to prepare Master 
Plans to guide 
future growth and 
development for 
Currie, Grassy, and 
Naracoopa.

As 
determined 
(Dates will 
be set in the 
Plan)

(Note: Funding achieved in 
May 2017, and final report 
scheduled for presentation 
to Council in May 2018.)
Implementation of 
Township Master Planning 
recommendations adopted 
by Council in FY2017-18

Complete GM

2.2 OBJECTIVE TRANSPORT
To advocate for fit for purpose freight and transport services (sea and air) 
for the island’s economy and accessibility

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.2.1 Our shipping service 
is reliable, affordable 
and fit for purpose 
by continuing to 
advocate and lobby 
governments.

i. Ongoing Refer to:
• 1.1.3 ii
• 1.2.3 i
• 1.2.3 ii

Premier engaged
Tasports’ CEO.

GSM

ii. By July 
2018

Lobby state Government 
to action the 
recommendations of the 
Tasmanian Legislative 
Council’s 2017 Inquiry into 
Freight Services for King 
Island

Ongoing GSM
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.2.2 Advocate and seek 
funding for the 
Grassy port to be 
upgraded to increase 
port capacity.

Ongoing Evidence of engagement 
with TasPorts, state and 
federal Government, and 
other key stakeholders to 
promote investment in the 
port

Mayor letter to Minister 
requesting funding.

GSM

2.2.3 Advocate keeping 
freight, energy, and 
fuel costs equitable 
for economic activity, 
which includes the 
freight equalization 
scheme.

Ongoing Evidence of engagement 
with state and federal 
Government and other key 
stakeholders to advocate 
for equitable freight, 
energy and fuel costs on KI

Mayor letter to Minister 
requesting Fuel Price 
Inquiry.

GSM

2.2.4 From the demand 
analysis, coordinate 
proactive planning 
and contingencies.

Ongoing Refer to 4.1.1 In progress GSM

2.3 OBJECTIVE AIRPORT
To implement the Airport Master Plan

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.3.1 Identify current and 
future needs in the 
context of vision and 
strategic priorities.

i. By July 
2018

KI Airport Master Plan 
2018 adopted by Council

Actioned GM

ii. As 
determined

Implement the 
recommendations of the 
King Island Airport Master 
Plan 2018

In progress SMO

GSM

iii. By Mar 
2019

Increased availability and 
display and merchandise 
of local produce and 
products to complete 
the Visitor experience at 
airport – volume, access 
and aesthetics

In progress CCM/ 
GSM

2.3.2 Implementation 
of the 
recommendations 
from the Airport 
Master Plan 2015 
that required 
immediate attention.

i. June 2019 Develop an assessment 
of the projected useful 
life of the runway, along 
with recommended 
intervention strategies 
(which may include 
resealing) – report Jun 
2019

In progress
2015 Plan superseded by 
2018 Plan

AM

ii. By Jun 
2019

RPT sealed apron parking 
extensions constructed

Deferred SMO

iii. By Feb 
2019

Sealed freight precinct 
and buildings have been 
constructed

Ongoing SMO

iv. By Feb 
2019

Commercial agreement 
in place with aviation fuel 
depot operator

Deferred GSM
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.3.3 Review the business 
model for the 
airport to ensure 
that it is based 
on a commercial 
framework for its 
operation.

i. By Dec 
2018

With regard to the 
recommendations of the 
Airport Master Plan 2018, 
review current commercial 
arrangements in place at 
the airport

Ongoing AM

ii. By Dec 
2018

Draft a strategy to guide 
future commercial 
arrangements and 
business opportunities at 
the airport

Ongoing AM

iii. By Jun 
2019

Develop an operating 
budget for FY2019-20 for 
the airport that breaks 
even or makes a profit

Revoked by Council GSM

2.3.4 Develop 
opportunities for a 
business precinct at 
the airport.

Refer to:
• 2.3.1 iii
• 2.3.3 ii

Refer to:
• 2.3.1 iii
• 2.3.3 ii

CCM 
GSM

2.3.5 Investigate transition 
of the airport to 
a wholly owned 
corporation/ 
business unit.

Refer to 2.3.3 Refer to 2.3.3 GSM

2.3 OBJECTIVE TELECOMMUNICATIONS
To support the island’s telecommunications and business development in 
line with the national framework

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.4.2 Pursue improved 
service access and 
data speed across 
the island, including 
the upgrade of 
the microwave 
connection to the 
mainland.

i. By Jun 
2019

Coordinate acquittal 
of $20,000 grant from 
Department of Premier 
& Cabinet to develop a 
telecommunications action 
plan for King Island

The economic impact 
of telecommunication’s 
report commissioned and 
due for delivery in July 
2019.

GSM

ii. As 
determined

Coordinate the 
implementation of the 
telecommunications action 
plan

Pending upon completion 
of an action plan.

GSM

2.4.3 Review the 
continuation of 
the IT System 
implementation and 
upgrade.

By Dec 2018 Review and update IT 
strategy +

In progress and continues 
in FY19/20 Annual Plan

SMFCS
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3. TOURISM, MARKETING, AND EVENTS 
Sustainable promote, develop and support the growth of King Island’s tourism

3.1 OBJECTIVE TOURISM
To support the growth of Tourism on King Island

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

3.1.3 Support growth of 
recreational and 
ecotourism activities 
through consultation, 
planning, and 
advocacy.

Ongoing Assist with marketing and 
audience development 
of the Wings on King two 
surveys each year.

Promoted the surveys 
through Council channels 
and more broadly worked 
on the delivery of the FACE 
of KI – a Festival of Art, 
Culture and Environment, 
which raised funds for the 
ongoing development of 
the WOK events.

CCM

Ongoing Working with Parks 
and Wildlife and other 
community groups to 
facilitate Clean Up King 
Island Day as an annual 
event.

Council endorsed the delay 
of this event till FY19/20 
at its meeting in March 
2019. Budget constraints 
have meant that this event 
is not part of the FY19/20 
budget or Annual Plan.

CCM

3.1.4 Support and enhance 
Council led events.

Ongoing Build capacity in 
community to deliver 
events

Ongoing CCM

Ongoing Event manage Australia 
Day and Clean Up King 
Island Day

Discussions are currently 
underway with the King 
Island Boat Club, regarding 
the opportunity to host 
Australia Day 2020 in 
Grassy. With the 2015 
event on the Naracoopa 
Foreshore the last time this 
community gathering was 
held outside of Currie.

CCM

3.1.5 Participate in the 
implementation 
of the Destination 
Action Plan and 
implement Council 
actions.

Feb 2019 Investigate development of 
retail and/or open studio 
trail around Island to 
extend and enhance golf 
visitations.

Currently in discussion and 
is continued in the FY19/20 
Annual Plan.

CCM
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

3.1.6 Participate and 
demonstrate 
leadership in 
processes that 
determine 
destination 
governance 
and destination 
development for King 
Island.

Sept 2018 Participation and inclusion 
in Cradle Coast Regional 
Arts & Events Strategy

While this working group 
has been meeting, its 
future is uncertain given 
the CCA ceased operating 
as a Regional Tourism 
Organisation (RTO) at 
30 June 2019. Tourism 
Tasmania is currently 
advertising for board 
members who will, in turn, 
recruit a CEO of a new 
RTO.

CCM

Jun 2019 Applying relevant finds 
from Strategy to existing 
events to aid in audience 
development.

As above. CCM

Nov 2019 Undertake market testing 
for small cruise ship visits.

A famil was undertaken 
with a scout from Noble 
Caledonia ahead of 
their cruise landing on 
5 November 2019. The 
result of this on Island 
understanding, should 
provide for a more 
seamless delivery than 
the cruise which landed in 
2018.

CCM
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4. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
Achieve economic viability through facilitating economic development that supports 
appropriate and sustainable growth

4.1 OBJECTIVE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
To support existing and new businesses viability, development, and growth

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

4.1.1 Undertake a demand 
analysis that 
articulated current 
and emergent 
needs related to 
business investment, 
development, and 
expansion.

Ongoing Refer to:
• Participation with 

Chamber of Commerce
• Worker accommodation 

project
• Airport Master Plan
• Shipping freight inquiry
• Business Opportunities 

Prospectus

Completed GSM

Dec 2018 Participate in the 
Cradle Coast Authority 
development of a regional 
Futures Plan
[The Futures Plan is going 
to include an assessment of 
KI’s current economic drivers 
and provide context of what 
might help drive further 
growth and development 
and consolidate existing 
economic drivers.]

The Futures Plan is being 
implemented by the 
Cradle Coast Authority. It is 
anticipated that King Island 
Council and local industry 
will be involved in the 
implementation.

GSM

4.1.2 Provide information 
about opportunities 
for emerging 
business demand; 
alongside relevant 
regulations and 
potential funding 
sources.

Dec 2018 Refer to 1.2.3 iii Ongoing GSM

4.1.3 Participate in the 
implementation 
of the DAP and 
implement actions 
that Council has 
responsibility for.

i. By June 
2019

Coordination of and 
participation in four 
DAP Leadership Group 
meetings and four Mini-
DAP meetings in FY2018-19
Refer to:
• Destination Action 

Plan Action Tracker, 
as updated after each 
DAP Leadership Group 
meeting

Ongoing GSM
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4.2 OBJECTIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Facilitate local economy opportunities for business development and 
employment opportunities

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

4.2.3 Continue to 
participate in 
promoting and 
protecting the King 
Island Brand.

i. June 2019 Conduct a workshop with 
key stakeholders, including 
KI community, to review 
and refine the King Island 
Brand

Deferred due to budget 
constraints.

GSM

ii. Oct 2019 Review and update the 
Terms of Reference for 
the King Island Brand 
Management Group

In progress GSM

iii. Ongoing Evidence of continual 
review of trademark 
applications relating to KI 
place or produce, with a 
view to ensuring protection 
of the KI Brand

In progress GSM

iv. Ongoing Active promotion of King 
Island place and produce 
in collaboration with KITI, 
CCA, Brand Tasmania and 
other stakeholders as 
identified.

In progress GSM

4.2.4 Retain young people 
on King Island 
through increased 
post year ten options 
and increased 
vocational and on 
the job training and 
skills development 
opportunities.

i. Aug 2018 Refer to 1.2.4
Identify potential 
traineeships/ cadetships/ 
apprenticeships with 
Council and advise KIDHS.

Ongoing SMFCS

ii. Aug 2018 Participate annually in 
KIDHS Year 10 Work 
Experience program

Ongoing SMFCS
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5. NATURAL ENVIRONMENT
Our island’s unique natural and built environment are sustainably respected and 
cared for.

5.1 OBJECTIVE ENVIRONMENT
To ensure our Island’s natural and built resources are protected in ways 
that sustain our economic, environmental and social development

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

5.1.1 To ensure existing 
and future 
development is 
consistent with 
environmental goals, 
councils’ vision and 
guiding principles, 
current plans and 
policies.

i. Dec 2018 Endorsement by Council 
of Asset Management Plan 
and Asset Management 
Policy.

Draft plan and policy 
complete, with further 
work in FY19/20 Annual 
Plan.

SMO

ii. Jan 2019 Annual King Island Council 
Bridge Management 
System reviewed.

Part of FY19/20 Annual 
Plan.

SMO

iii. Dec 2018 Lobby for improvement 
in State Growth road – to 
reconstruct full length 
of Grassy Road to an 
acceptable standard

Actioned GM

iv. Sept 2018 New contract negotiated 
with State Growth 
for development and 
maintenance of State road 
network on KI

In progress with State 
Growth

GM

v. Ongoing Maintain compliance with 
current Planning Scheme 
and State government 
policies and regulations

Actioned DSC

5.1.2 To plan to safeguard 
the quality of soil, 
water, clean air and 
visual amenities.

i. Nov 2018 Undertake twice yearly 
monitoring of landfill and 
quarry sites

Completed TCO

ii. Dec 2018 Implementation of best 
practice / cost effective 
measures to meet 
compliance obligations 
with the Environmental 
Protection Agency and 
other government 
regulators

Ongoing SMO

iii. Ongoing Developing and 
implementing Local 
Provision Schedules of 
Tasmanian Planning 
Scheme

Actioned DSC
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

5.1.3 To ensure planning 
and decision-
making take into 
account physical, 
cultural, social and 
economic impacts; 
particularly for 
long-term planning; 
intergenerational 
equity principles.

i. Primary reference:
• DAP 2.2. Identify land 

availability and facilitate 
appropriate land use 
planning to support 
accommodation 
development. + 2.3 
Facilitate and accelerate 
the current pipeline 
of accommodation 
development.

• TDS 1.2 - Six Key 
Principles

• Principle 1 Adoption 
of national standards 
and accreditation for 
developments

• Principle 2 Consistency 
with planning reform at 
regional and state levels

• Principle 3 Flexibility 
in planning controls, 
particularly for visitor 
accommodation

• Principle 4 Use of 
appropriate consultation 
processes

• Principle 5 
Encouragement of 
adaptive reuse of 
heritage sites for tourism 
developments 

• Principle 6 Recognition 
of significant visual and 
cultural landscapes

• TDS 3.3.3 Facilitate 
and accelerate the 
current pipeline of 
accommodation 
development.

ii. By Nov 
2018

KI Land Use Strategic Plan 
2018 – adopted at Council 
meeting October 2018

Plan adopted by Council 18 
June 2019.

DSC

iii. As 
determined

Prioritise actions identified 
in KI Land Use Strategic 
Plan 2018

Implementation and 
Monitoring Plan adopted 
by Council 18 June 2019.

DSC

iv. By June 
2019

Transition to Tasmanian 
Planning Scheme

Progressing DSC
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6. GOVERNANCE AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Provide high-quality professional governance, advocacy, and leadership together with 
effective administration of Council resources.

6.1 OBJECTIVE ADVOCACY AND LEADERSHIP
To improve the economic, social, and environmental wellbeing of the King 
Island municipality

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

6.1.1 Utilise the King Island 
Key Issues 2016 and 
Priority Projects 
2016 documents 
to advocate for 
the Local, State, 
Regional and Federal 
Government; to 
address the urgent 
issue identified.

Ongoing 1. Advocate current and 
future issues

2. Build relationships
3. Communications 

strategy with all levels of 
government

KIPP and Key Issues –
1. Grassy Port Upgrade 

And Shipping Service
2. King Island Airport 

Master Plan 
Implementation

3. Waste Management 
Facililites Upgrade

4. Town Masterplans
5. Telecommunications

Actioned GM

6.1.2 Develop and 
implement the 
Emergency 
Management Plan.

i. Quarterly/ 
annually

Participating in training 
+ facilitating and 
participating in meeting 
schedules and exercises.

Completed GM

ii. By Jan 
2019

Review and update of KI 
Emergency Management 
Plan 2016 – due December 
2018

Completed SMO

6.1.3 Support the concept 
of the Service Centre 
Development in 
Currie.

Dec 2018 KIPP and Key Issues
1.Working Party of key 
stakeholders established

Completed GM

Jun 2019 2. Concept plan developed 
and project costing 
established

Expressions of Interests 
for the Design Consultant 
issued.

GM

6.1.4 Advocate for health 
and emergency 
services to keep 
pace with growing 
demand.

Sept 2018 Primary reference: Key 
Issues P4 + Key Issues Exec 
Summary P7
Ascertain needs as 
articulated by key 
stakeholders during 
individual meet and greets 
throughout introduction to 
KI community

Ongoing GM
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

6.1.5 Develop and 
implement the King 
Island Strategic 
Planning Framework 
2018

By Mar 2019 King Island Council 
Strategic Plan developed

Part of the FY19/20 Annual 
Plan.

GM

By Mar 2019 Arts & Cultural 
Development Plan 
developed

Part of the FY19/20 Annual 
Plan.

CCM

By Mar 2019 Economic Development 
Plan developed

Part of the FY19/20 Annual 
Plan.

GSM

By Mar 2019 Social Plan developed Part of the FY19/20 Annual 
Plan.

CCM

By Sept 2018 Risk Management strategy 
and policy developed

Completed GM

By Nov 2018 Risk Management plans in 
place

Completed GM

6.1.6 Develop a Public 
Health Plan 2018 
that meets the 
requirements of 
the LG Act 1993 
s72(1)(ab)& (1A), 
Public Health Act 
and any other 
relevant statutory 
requirements

By Mar 2019 Strategies will be identified 
and implemented towards 
meeting the public health 
needs of persons within 
King Island

Part of the FY19/20 Annual 
Plan.

GM

By Mar 2019 Strategies will be evaluated 
to inform development of 
Public Health Plan 2019

Part of the FY19/20 Annual 
Plan.

GM

6.2 OBJECTIVE GOVERNANCE
Provide consistent, accountable, transparent and effective governance of 
the King Island Council

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

6.2.1 Review the Council’s 
governance process, 
in terms of the policy 
framework which 
covers Governance, 
General Manager 
Directives, and 
Redundant Policies.

i. Aug 2018 Policies in place to meet 
Legislative compliance

Actioned in policy 
framework and register for 
review.

SMFCS

ii. July 2018 Council rescinds outdated 
/ superseded policies

Rescinded/redundant 
policies report presented 
at the June 2019 Council 
Meeting, with the 
resolution to workshop 
them in September 2019.

SMFCS

iii. Oct 2018 Review policy framework Completed SMFCS

6.2.2 Develop a community 
engagement 
model to facilitate 
community 
participation and 
consultation in 
decision-making.

i. Sept 2018 Number and type of 
communication tools 
developed and utilised, 
such as:
• Newsletters
• Media Releases
• Advertisements
• Radio and TV Interviews
• Facebook
• Website

The Council utilises all 
types of communication 
tools.

CCM

ii. Oct 2018 Review and redevelop KI 
Communication Strategy – 
Inform & Engage

This has been included in 
the FY18/19 Annual Plan

CCM
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

6.2.3 Examine specific 
service delivery 
options between 
Council and other 
providers.

Sept 2018 Evidence of cooperation 
with other councils in 
Cradle Coast Region to 
pursue opportunities to 
progress resource sharing 
options where there is 
demonstrated benefit 
for KI. (refer Cradle Coast 
Authority Shared Services 
Project).

Initial discussion has 
occurred with NW Council’s 
regarding resource sharing 
opportunities.

Future actions are in the 
FY19/20 Annual Plan.

SMFCS

6.2.4 Examine 
opportunities to 
resource share 
between other local 
councils, with the aim 
to improve efficiency 
and provided 
effective service.

Oct 2018 Number and type of 
resource sharing initiatives 
undertaken

Initial discussion has 
occurred with NW Council’s 
regarding resource sharing 
opportunities.

Future actions are in the 
FY19/20 Annual Plan.

GM

6.2.5 Communicate 
Council’s decisions, 
policies, and 
activities and the 
reasons behind 
them, through 
Council’s website and 
publications.

Monthly Number and type of 
communication tools 
developed and utilised, 
such as:
• Newsletters
• Media Releases
• Advertisements
• Radio and TV Interviews
• Facebook
• Website

The Council utilises all 
types of communication 
tools.

CCM

6.2.6 Ensure Council 
meets its statutory 
obligations and 
manages corporate & 
community risk

Dec 2018 Identify all compliance 
requirements

Development of a 
Compliance Calendar.

SMFCS

Feb 2019 Undertake an internal 
audit of compliance 
requirements

Ongoing SMFCS

 



6.3 OBJECTIVE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
Provide long-term financial viability planning for the municipality.

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

6.3.1 Develop and annually 
review a financial 
strategy outlining 
how Council intends 
to meet the financial 
requirements (in 
line with the budget 
process) of its Asset 
Management Plans 
and other strategic 
plans.

Mar 2019 Long-term financial plan 
developed in line with the 
Asset Management Plans 
(refer 2.1.4).

Part of the FY19/20 Annual 
Plan.

SMFCS

6.3.2 Examine and review 
the costs associated 
with the provision of 
facilities and where 
necessary provide 
cogent information 
in which Council 
can make informed 
decisions about 
community facilities/
service obligations.

Apr 2019 Number of facilities 
reviewed in 12-month 
period. (Reviews to 
incorporate micro and 
macro economic impacts 
to the island which can be 
utilised by the King Island 
Council and community 
members.)

Council has changed focus 
and is currently identifying 
a risk-based schedule of 
facilities to review.

This is part of the FY19/20 
Annual Plan.

SMFCS

6.3.3 Undertake a 
review of Council’s 
current grants 
and sponsorship 
arrangements to 
ensure fairness and 
equity.

Feb 2019 Recommendations 
for budget estimates 
workshop

Currently reviewing the 
timing of Sponsorship/
Grants and associated 
Policy.

SMFCS

6.3.4 Develop and 
maintain policies and 
operational plans 
that are affordable to 
the community and 
sustainable into the 
future.

Aug 2018 Budget process 
including review cycle 
to be developed and 
implemented.

Ongoing SMFCS
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6.4 OBJECTIVE EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
To develop skilled, experienced, motivated and accountable staff

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE

PROGRESS UPDATE RO

6.4.1 Provide and maintain 
adequate staff and 
resources levels 
to meet changing 
needs.

Dec 2018 HRM review for additional 
HR requirements

Completed GM

6.4.2 Retain an in-
house skills base 
to overcome the 
issue of succession 
planning and skill 
shortage.

Mar 2019 1. Succession plans 
and individual staff 
development plans in 
place for all staff

2. Source appropriate 
training for staff

1. Draft work plans 
complete

2. Training opportunities 
explored

3. Finalising is dependent 
on budget approval.

GM

6.4.3 Demonstrate 
commitment to the 
organisation’s values 
and behaviours 
document and 
corresponding Action 
Plan (developed in 
Dec 2015).

Aug 2018

Nov 2018

Feb 2019

May 2019

Quarterly review of action 
plan and implementation 
of actions

Actioned GM

6.4.4 Conduct annual 
reviews of staff 
performance in 
relation to support 
services and the 
maintenance of 
accurate records.

Dec 2018 Individual Performance 
Reviews undertaken

In progress GM
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VI. Appendices – Source Documents Cited - Plans, Reports, and Strategies

No Title of Document Date Abbreviation Strategies

1 King Island Council – Strategic Plan – Land Use 
and Development

2008

2 MoHow – King Island Youth Strategy - Conwell 
Wagner

2008/2009

3 Currie Harbour Structure Plan – King Island 
Council – Ref: 22423-01

January 2007

4 King Island Strategy Plan Report – King Island 
Council – Project Ref No: 22654-001

March 2008

5 King Island Recreation Plan – Final Report – HM 
Leisure Planning Pty Ltd

December 2008

6 King Island Council – Strategic Plan 2011 – 2020

7 King Island – Socio-economic Stock, Flows and 
Prospects - Strategic Economic Solutions

June 2015

8 King Island Airport Master Plan 21 June 2015 2.3

9 King Island Context Analysis – Business Sense 
Prepared for the King Island Council

November 2015

10 King Island Council – Annual Report 2010 – 2015 17th November 
2015

11 Helen Rees – Council Consultation Process 2015 – 2016

12 King Island Destination Action Plan 2016 – 2020 – 
Cradle Coast

18th February 
2016

DAP 1, 2, 3, 4

13 Regional Development Australia – Tasmania – 
King Island Visit – Summary Report

April 2016 RDA

14 King Island Council – Tourism Development 
Strategy 2016 – 2020

May 2016 TDS 2, 3, 4

15 Budget Estimates 2016 - 2017 May 2016

16 King Island Council – Key Issues 2016 19th May 2016 KISS

17 King Island Council – Key Issues – Executive 
Summary 2016

19th May 2016 KIES

18 King Island Council – Priority Projects 2016 19th May 2016 KIPP 2, 5

 
Others documents cited:
• Waste Management Plan
• Sustainable Murchison 2040 Community Plan Regional Framework Plan
• King Island Municipal Emergency Management Plan – May 2016 – Issue 9- King Island Visitor 

Survey – April 2015 – March 2016 – Prepared by King Island Council
• - King Island Chamber of Commerce – King Island Workforce Capability Study – Final - 8 February 

2017 – RSCTourism and The Work Lab
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SOURCES OF REVENUE 2016-2019

OPERATING EXPENDITURE 2016-2019
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UNDERLYING RESULT 2016-2019

GRANTS RECEIVED 2016-2019
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2016-2019

NET FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 2016-2019

600,000

200,000

400,000

800,000

1,200,000

0

1,400,000

1,800,000

1,600,000

1,000,000

2019 2018 2017 2016

2,000,000

Replacement/renewal 
of existing assets

New assets

3,000,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

0

7,000,000

5,000,000

2019 2018 2017 2016

8,000,000

Net financial liabilities

Liquid assets

Total liabilities



2017

2018

2019

0 500 1500 2500 35003000 400020001000

2016

Total works in progress

Recreation and community facilities

Bridges

Heritage buildings

Buildings

Waste management

Drainage

Total plant and equipment

Jetties

Land

2019

2017

2018

2016

0 500 1500 2500 35003000 400020001000

Aerodromes Roads

53

ASSETS: (WRITTEN DOWN) VALUES 2016 - 2019.  $’000

ROADS & AERODROME: (WRITTEN DOWN) VALUES 2016 - 2019.  $’000
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ASSETS (WRITTEN DOWN VALUE) 2019

Total plant and equipment

Aerodromes

Waste management

Land

Roads

Drainage

Total works in progress

Buildings (inc. Heritage Buildings

Bridges

Recreation and community facilities

Jetties

Total (written down value) 2019

$38,051,729

$2,078,053

$784,861

$1,714,653

$3,759,000

$517,534$531,210

$713,702

$690,616

$8,850,000

$3,402,877
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Councillors of King Island Council 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
 
 Qualified Opinion 
 
I have audited the financial report of King Island Council (Council), which comprises the statement 
of financial position as at 30 June 2019 and statements of comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the statement of 
certification by the General Manager. 
 
In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of my report, the accompanying financial report:  

(a) presents fairly, in all material respects, Council’s financial position as at 30 June 2019 and 
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 

(b) is in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993 and Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 
 
Council’s property, infrastructure, plant and equipment includes road infrastructure as detailed in 
Note 5.6 of the financial report. Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are measured at 
their fair value in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant & Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value 
Measurement. AASB 116 also requires Council to carry out revaluations with sufficient regularity 
to ensure the carrying amount of these assets does not differ materially from that which would be 
determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period. 
 
Council has not undertaken a revaluation of the road infrastructure assets since 30 June 2012. My 
assessment of the financial impact of Council failing to undertake revaluations with sufficient 
regularity is based on the application of relevant construction indices determined by the 
Australian Bureau of Statistics. The understatement in the road infrastructure assets at 30 June 
2019 was $5.37m. There is a corresponding understatements in Council’s asset revaluation reserve 
recorded as part of equity. 
 
I conducted the audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of my report. I am independent of Council in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of 
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Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report 
in Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 
 
The Audit Act 2008 further promotes the independence of the Auditor-General. The Auditor-
General is the auditor of all Tasmanian public sector entities and can only be removed by 
Parliament.  The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is 
not subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. 
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and 
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General’s opinion are 
significant. 
 
My audit responsibility does not extend to the budget figures included in the financial report, the 
asset renewal funding ratio disclosed in 10.5, nor the Significant Business Activities disclosed in 
note 10.4 to the financial report and accordingly, I express no opinion on them. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my opinion.  
 
Responsibilities of the General Manager for the Financial Report 
 
The General Manager is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1993 
and for such internal control as determined necessary to enable the preparation of the financial 
report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial report, the General Manager is responsible for assessing Council’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless Council is to be dissolved by an Act of 
Parliament or the Councillors intend to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.  I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
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one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Council’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the General Manager.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the General Manager’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am 
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusion is based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause Council to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
I communicate with the General Manager regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that I identify during my audit. 
 
 

 
Rod Whitehead 
Auditor-General 
 
Tasmanian Audit Office 
 
15 November 2019 
Hobart  
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King Island Council
Financial Report for the Year ended 30 June 2019

Budget Actual Actual
Note 2019 2019 2018

Income from continuing operations $ $ $
Recurrent income
Rates and charges 2.1 2,560,072    2,549,139   2,454,499     
Statutory fees and fines 2.2 141,950       164,946      131,988        
User fees 2.3 1,067,573    597,137      652,907        
Grants 2.4 1,009,143    2,173,345   1,889,555     
Private works 2.5 660,600       1,427,909   1,309,637     
Interest 2.6 90,000         167,757      147,966        
Other income 2.7 519,322       719,049      623,362        
Investment revenue from Water Corporation 2.9, 4.1 66,000         61,491        103,509        

6,114,660    7,860,773   7,313,423     
Capital income
Capital grants received specifically for new or upgraded assets 2.4 727,943       646,940      517,006        
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 2.8 -               (34,410)       (20,620)         

727,943       612,530      496,386        

Total income from continuing operations 6,842,603    8,473,303   7,809,809     

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits 3.1 (2,543,004)   (2,674,452)  (2,200,009)    
Materials and services 3.2 (2,567,911)   (3,631,809)  (2,862,731)    
Depreciation and amortisation 3.3 (1,607,455)   (1,697,796)  (1,598,190)    
Finance costs 3.4 (54,976)        (58,176)       (59,062)         
Other expenses 3.5 (943,901)      (881,708)     (920,276)       

Total expenses from continuing operations (7,717,247)   (8,943,941)  (7,640,268)    

Result from continuing operations (874,644)      (470,638)     169,541        

Net result for the year (874,644)      (470,638)     169,541        

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit
Fair value adjustments on equity investment assets 8.1, 4.1 -               722,377      -                
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 8.1 -               (1,684,390)  -                

-               (962,013)     -                
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to surplus or deficit
Financial assets available for sale
─ Fair Value adjustment on equity investment assets 8.1, 4.1 -               -              63,774          

-               -              63,774          
Total Other Comprehensive Income -               (962,013)     63,774          

Total Comprehensive result (874,644)      (1,432,651)  233,315        

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
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King Island Council
Financial Report for the Year ended 30 June 2019

Note 2019 2018
 $  $ 

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 2,218,368              2,420,208                 
Investments 5.2 4,302,904              4,356,395                 
Trade and other receivables 5.3 544,246                  458,496                    
Inventories 5.4 529,700                  906,075                    
Other assets 5.5 99,716                    148,610                    
Total current assets                7,694,934                  8,289,784 

Non-current assets
Investment in water corporation 4.1 5,699,784              4,977,407                 
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 5.6 61,094,235            62,963,014               
Total non-current assets              66,794,019                67,940,421 
Total assets              74,488,953                76,230,205 

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 6.1 538,010                  626,951                    
Trust funds and deposits 6.2 289,958                  357,356                    
Provisions 6.3 281,764                  249,511                    
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 7.1 148,349                  197,022                    
Total current liabilities                1,258,081                  1,430,840 

Non-current liabilities
Provisions 6.3 62,931                    50,424                      
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 7.1 1,040,655              1,189,004                 
Total non-current liabilities                1,103,586                  1,239,428 
Total liabilities                2,361,667                  2,670,268 

Net Assets              72,127,286                73,559,937 

Equity
Accumulated surplus 26,486,365            26,945,964               
Reserves 8.1 45,640,921            46,613,973               

Total Equity              72,127,286                73,559,937 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2019
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King Island Council
Financial Report for the Year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
Inflows/ Inflows/

(Outflows) (Outflows)
Note $ $

Cash flows from operating activities

Rates 2,535,827           2,424,523          
User charges and other fines (inclusive of GST) 647,118              764,164             
Grants (inclusive of GST) 2,207,450           1,889,555          
Private works (inclusive of GST) 1,570,700           1,440,601          
Interest received 140,340              147,966             
Investment revenue from water corporation 2.9 61,491                103,509             
Other receipts (inclusive of GST) 910,085              755,350             
Net GST refund/payment 253,812              202,594             
Payments to suppliers (inclusive of GST) (4,587,246)          (2,913,323)        
Payments to employees (including redundancies) (2,624,259)          (2,150,116)        
Finance costs (58,176)               (59,062)              
Other payments (19,639)               (920,277)           
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 8.2 1,037,503           1,685,484          

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (inclusive of GST) (1,713,490)          (2,127,034)        
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 38,136                438,628             
Capital grants (inclusive of GST) 646,940              517,006             
Investments in term deposits 53,491                (509,058)           
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (974,923)             (1,680,458)        

Cash flows from financing activities     

Trust funds and deposits (67,398)               156,318             
Repayment of interest bearing loans and borrowings 8.3 (197,022)             (220,870)           
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (264,420)             (64,552)              

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (201,840)             (59,526)              
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 2,420,208           2,479,734          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year     5.1 2,218,368           2,420,208          

Restrictions on cash assets 5.1
Financing arrangements 8.4

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
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King Island Council
Financial Report for the Year ended 30 June 2019

Note
Accumulated 

Surplus

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve
Fair Value 

Reserve 
Other                      

Reserves
Total                         

Equity                  
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019

$ $ $ $ $

Balance at beginning of the financial year 26,945,964    42,132,545        429,194        4,052,234          73,559,937      
Surplus / (deficit) for the year (470,638)        -                     -                -                     (470,638)          
Other Comprehensive Income:

Fair Value adjustment on equity investment assets 4.1 -                 -                     722,377        -                     722,377            
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 8.1 -                 (1,684,390)         -                -                     (1,684,390)       

Total comprehensive income 26,475,326    40,448,155        1,151,571     4,052,234          72,127,286      
Transfers between reserves 8.1 11,039            -                     -                (11,039)              -                    
Balance at end of the financial year 26,486,365    40,448,155        1,151,571     4,041,195          72,127,286      

Accumulated 
Surplus

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve
Fair Value 

Reserve 
Other                      

Reserves
Total                         

Equity                  
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018

$ $ $ $ $

Balance at beginning of the financial year 27,057,911    42,132,545        365,420        3,770,746          73,326,622      
Surplus / (deficit) for the year 169,541         -                     -                -                     169,541            
Other Comprehensive Income:

Fair Value adjustment on available for sale asset 4.1 -                 -                     63,774          -                     63,774              

Total comprehensive income 27,227,452    42,132,545        429,194        3,770,746          73,559,937      
Transfers between reserves 8.1 (281,488)        -                     -                281,488             -                    
Balance at end of the financial year 26,945,964    42,132,545        429,194        4,052,234          73,559,937      

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

The above statement should be read with the accompanying notes.

2019

2018
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King Island Council Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 1 
1.1 Reporting entity

(a)

(b) The purpose of the Council is to:
- provide for health, safety and welfare of the community;
- to represent and promote the interests of the community;
- provide for the peace, order and good government in the municipality.

1.2 Basis of accounting

1.3 Use of judgements and estimates

This financial report has been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis.

The financial statements are "general purpose financial statements". They consist of a Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial 
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and notes accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial 
statements comply with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and the 
Local Government Act 1993 (LGA1993) (as amended). Council has determined that it does not have profit generation as a prime objective. 
Consequently, where appropriate, Council has elected to apply options and exemptions within accounting standards that are applicable to not-for-profit 
entities.

This financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except where specifically stated in notes 4.1, 5.4, 5.5, 5.6, 5.7, 6.3, 7.1 and 
10.3(d) .

King Island Council was established on 19 December 1907 and is a body corporate with perpetual succession and a common seal.
Council's main office  is located at 10 George Street Currie Tasmania

Overview

Judgements and Assumptions

Defined benefit superannuation fund obligations

All amounts are presented in Australian dollars and unless stated, have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

In the application of Australian Accounting Standards, Council is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying values of 
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year.  Where appropriate, comparative figures have been 
amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been made of any material changes to comparatives. 

Council has made no assumptions concerning the future that may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next reporting period.  Judgements made by Council that have significant effects on the financial report are disclosed in the relevant notes as 
follows: 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods.

Investment in water corporation
Assumptions utilised in the determination of Council’s valuation of its investment in TasWater are discussed in note 4.1.

Employee entitlements

Fair value of property, infrastructure, plant & equipment

Actuarial assumptions are utilised in the determination of Council’s defined benefit superannuation fund obligations. These assumptions are discussed 
in note 8.5.

Assumptions and judgements are utilised in determining the fair value of Council’s property, plant and equipment including useful lives and depreciation 
rates. These assumptions are discussed in note 5.6.

Assumptions are utilised in the determination of Council’s employee entitlement provisions. These assumptions are discussed in note 6.3.
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King Island Council

1.4 Functions/Activities of the Council
(a) Revenue, expenditure and assets attributable to each function as categorised in (c) below: 

Grants Other
Total 

Revenue
Total 

Expenditure
Surplus/
(Deficit) Assets

Government and administration
2018 - 2019 887,440           202,555           1,089,995        1,981,438           (891,443)          9,718,383        
2017 - 2018 777,531           236,283           1,013,814        2,096,422           (1,082,608)       10,330,618      

Roads, streets and bridges
2018 - 2019 1,413,011        458,154           1,871,165        1,810,225           60,940             42,169,598      
2017 - 2018 1,543,207        469,589           2,012,796        1,488,787           524,009           42,515,598      

Waste management
2018 - 2019 -                   583,190           583,190           498,708              84,482             818,723           
2017 - 2018 -                    526,001            526,001            399,634               126,367            718,585            

Building, Planning and Environmental health
2018 - 2019 6,263               125,673           131,936           184,420              (52,484)            -                   
2017 - 2018 -                   95,152             95,152             229,599              (134,447)          -                   

Community amenities
2018 - 2019 7,255               186,599           193,854           432,452              (238,598)          867,126           
2017 - 2018 16,279             18,741             35,020             463,894              (428,874)          899,096           

Community services
2018 - 2019 133,319           23,298             156,617           489,997              (333,380)          504,093           
2017 - 2018 69,544             20,609             90,153             131,184              (41,031)            488,011           

Recreation facilities
2018 - 2019 -                   -                   -                   -                      -                   2,133,559        
2017 - 2018 -                   -                   -                   -                      -                   1,992,707        

Other - not attributable
2018 - 2019 372,997           4,107,959        4,480,956        3,581,111           899,845           18,277,472      
2017 - 2018 -                   4,036,874        4,036,874        2,830,749           1,206,125        19,285,590      

Total
2018 - 2019 2,820,285        5,687,428        8,507,713        8,978,351           (470,638)          74,488,953      
2017 - 2018 2,406,561        5,403,249        7,809,810        7,640,269           169,541           76,230,205      

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
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King Island Council Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

1.4 Functions/Activities of the Council (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of Assets above with the Statement of Financial Position at 30 June:

2019 2018
Current assets 7,694,934        8,289,784           
Non-current assets 66,794,019      67,940,421         

74,488,953      76,230,205         

(c) Governance and administration
Operation and maintenance of council chambers, administration offices, and councillors.

Roads, streets and bridges

Waste Management
Collection, handling, processing and disposal of all waste materials.

Environmental Health/Environmental Management

Planning Services

Building control
The development and maintenance of building constructions standards.

Community amenities

Community services

Recreation facilities 

Other - not attributable
Rates and charges and work not attributed elsewhere.

Construction, maintenance and cleaning of road, streets, footpaths, bridges, parking facilities and street lighting.

Environmental Health includes disease control, food surveillance, public-use building standards, health education and promotion, water quality, 
workplace safety and cemeteries.

Environmental management includes strategies and programs for the protection of the environment and regulations of activities affecting the 
environment.

Administration of the town planning scheme, subdivisions and urban and rural renewal programs.

Operation and maintenance of facilities for the community, Council administration and Council halls (excluding indoor sports complexes).

Administration and operation of dog registration, operation of pounds, control of straying stock, and noxious weeds. Operation of the Child Care 
Centre, operation and support of the performing arts, museum and the presentation of festivals. Community Development which provides for the 
implementation of a process by which strategies and plans can be developed so that the Council can fulfil their general responsibility for enhancing 
the quality of life of the whole community.

Operation and maintenance of sporting facilities (includes swimming pools, active and passive recreation and recreation centres).

7



King Island Council

2019 2018
$ $

Note 2 Revenue
Note 2.1 Rates and charges

General Rate          2,051,019          2,018,045 
Fire Levy             108,348             106,518 
Non-commercial Waste Collection Charge             389,772             329,936 

Total rates and charges          2,549,139          2,454,499 

Accounting policy

Rates and charges income

Note 2.2 Statutory fees and fines
Building Fees               24,803               18,258 
Planning and Development Fees               91,363               66,990 
Rates and Land Information Certificates               28,593               26,308 
Animal Control Registrations and Fees               10,767               10,863 
Licence and Permit Fees                 9,420                 9,569 
Total statutory fees and fines             164,946             131,988 

Accounting policy

Statutory fee and fine income

Note 2.3 User fees
Airport User Fees 388,280           441,712           
Refuse Disposal Fees 187,007           192,208           
Cemetery 20,070             18,033             
Hall and Facility Hire 1,432               413                  
Other Fees and Charges 348                  541                  
Total user fees 597,137           652,907           

Accounting policy

User fee income
Fee income is recognised as revenue when the service has been provided or the payment is received, whichever first occurs.  

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Council uses Adjusted Assessed Annual Value (AAV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipality.  The AAV of a property 
is the amount of annual rental it is assessed to earn by the  Valuer-General of Tasmania.
The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2018-19  was $24.477 million (2017-18 $24.408 million).  The 2018-19 rate in each 
dollar of the adjusted assessed annual value was 8.534 cents (2017-18, 8.332 cents).

The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipality  was 1 July 2016, and the valuation was first 
applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2017.

Fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has been 
applied, whichever first occurs. 

Rate income is recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over the assets comprising the receipt.
Control over assets acquired from rates is obtained at the commencement of the rating year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the rateable 
property or, where earlier, upon receipt of the rates. 
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King Island Council

2019 2018
$ $

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 2.4 Grants
Grants were received in respect of the following:
Summary of grants
Federally funded grants 2,466,573 2,320,738
State funded grants 353,712 81,279
Others -                   4,544
Total 2,820,285 2,406,561

Grants - Recurrent
Commonwealth Government Financial Assistance Grants - General Purpose             887,440             777,531 
Commonwealth Government Financial Assistance Grants - Roads          1,043,068             996,324 
Tasmanian Government - Service hub feasibility study             120,000                      -   
Tasmanian Government - Aerodrome               85,000                      -   
Fuel Tax credit               20,000               26,156 
Commonwealth Government - Building Better Regions Fund               13,125                      -   
Tasmanian Government - Right Fit First Time                      -                 40,000 
Tasmanian Community Fund - Museum Roof                      -                 20,000 
Tasmanian Government - Telecommunications Plan                      -                 20,000 
Tasmanian Government - Anzac Grant                      -                   5,000 
Foundations for Regional & Rural Renewal - Access to Education                      -                   4,544 
Other                 4,712                      -   

Total recurrent grants 2,173,345 1,889,555

Capital grants received specifically for new or upgraded assets
Commonwealth Government - Roads to Recovery 349,943           520,727           
Tasmanian Government - Aerodrome 135,000           -                   
Commonwealth Government - Aerodrome 152,997           -                   
Other 9,000               (3,721)              
Total capital grants 646,940           517,006           

Conditions on grants

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 192,172           45,000             
Less: expended during the current period from revenues recognised in previous reporting periods

Roads funding (118,814)          (45,000)            
Feasibility studies - community infrastructure (60,000)            -                   
Other (8,814)              -                   

(187,628)          (45,000)            

Roads funding -                   118,814           
Feasibility studies - community infrastructure 120,000           60,000             
Other -                   13,358             

120,000           192,172           
Unexpended at the close of this reporting period 124,544           192,172           

Net increase (decrease) in non-reciprocal grant revenues for the year (67,628)            147,172           

The Australian Commonwealth Government provides untied Financial Assistance Grants (FAG) to Council for general purpose use and the 
provision of local roads. In accordance with AASB1004: Contributions, Council recognised these grants as revenue when it received the funds 
and obtained control.
During the financial year, Council has received from the Commonwealth an early payment of approximately 50% of the total FAG that is being 
paid in respect of the 2019-20 financial year.  This amount was  $979,492, (2017-18, $899,143). The receipt of this payment has resulted in 
FAG income being above that originally budgeted for and has impacted the Statement of Comprehensive Income resulting in the deficit being 
lower by the same amount. 

Plus: amounts recognised as revenues in this reporting period but not yet expended in accordance 
with the conditions

Non-reciprocal grants which were obtained on the condition that they be expended for specified purposes 
or in a future period, but which are not yet expended in accordance with those conditions, are as follows:

9



King Island Council

2019 2018
$ $

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 2.4 Grants (continued)
Accounting policy

Grant income - operating and capital 
Grant income is recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over the assets comprising the receipt.

Unreceived contributions over which Council has control are recognised as receivables.

Note 2.5 Private Works
Road Works performed for State Government 738,366           713,122           
Works undertaken for other entities 689,543           596,515           
Total private works 1,427,909        1,309,637        
Accounting policy

Private Works
Private works income is recognised as revenue when the serice has bene provided or when the payment is received, whichever occurs first.

Note 2.6 Interest
Interest on rates 45,244             23,695             
Interest on cash and cash equivalents, and investments 122,513           124,271           
Total 167,757           147,966           

Accounting policy
Interest income
Interest is recognised progressively as it is earned.

Note 2.7 Other income
Motor Tax refund 458,154           469,589           
Insurance recovery 175,000           46,953             
Rental/Lease Income 47,704             70,705             
Reimbursements 26,997             15,535              
Commission 2,886               6,475               
Part 5 Agreement - Royalties -                   4,789               
Other 8,308               9,316               
Total other income             719,049             623,362 

Accounting policy

Rental income

Other income
Other income is recognised as revenue when the payment is due or the payment is received, whichever occurs first.

Operating leases as lessor

Rents are recognised as revenue when the payment is due or the payment is received, whichever first occurs.  Rental payments received in 
advance are recognised as a prepayment until they are due.  

Control over granted assets is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier notification that a grant has been secured, and 
are valued at their fair value at the date of transfer.
Where grants recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on condition that they be expended in a particular manner or 
used over a particular period and those conditions were undischarged at balance date, the unused grant is also disclosed.  The note also 
discloses the amount of unused grant or contribution from prior years that was expended on Council’s operations during the current year.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite service has not been provided at 
balance date and conditions include a requirement to refund unused contributions.  Revenue is then recognised as the various performance 
obligations under an agreement are fulfilled. Council does not currently have any reciprocal grants. 

Council is a lessor and enters into agreements with a number of lessees. These include commercial and non-commercial agreements. 
Where leases are non-commercial agreements, these are generally with not for profit, such as sporting, organisations. In these cases 
subsidised or peppercorn rents are charged because Council recognises part of its role is community service and community support. In these 
situations, Council records lease revenue on an accruals basis and records the associated properties as part of land and buildings within 
property, plant and equipment. Buildings are recognised at depreciated replacement cost. 

Where leases are commercial agreements, but properties leased are part of properties predominantly used by Council for its own purposes, 
Council records lease revenue on an accruals basis and records the associated properties as part of land and buildings within property, plant 
and equipment. Buildings are recognised at depreciated replacement cost. 

Motor Tax refund income
Motor tax refund income is recognised as revenue when the payment is due or the payment is received, whichever occurs first.
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King Island Council

2019 2018
$ $

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 2.8 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment. 
Proceeds of sale 38,137             438,628           
Written down value  of assets disposed of (72,547)            (459,248)          
Total (34,410)            (20,620)            

Accounting policy

Gains and losses on asset disposals
The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the buyer.

Note 2.9 Investment revenue from water corporation
Dividend received 33,000             61,047             
Tax equivalent received 24,085             29,222             
Guarantee fee received 4,406               13,240             
Total investment revenue from water corporation 61,491             103,509           

Accounting policy

Investment revenue
Dividend revenue is recognised when Council's right to receive payment is established and it can be reliably measured.

Note 3 Expenses
Note 3.1 Employee benefits

Wages and salaries 1,945,765        1,718,402        
Workers compensation 74,698             61,526             
Annual leave and long service leave 303,022           200,253           
Sick leave 37,814             31,397             
Superannuation 250,859           211,492           
Fringe benefits tax 6,489               8,356               
Payroll Tax 81,312             57,246             
Relocation costs -                   28,180             
Termination payments 169,732           -
Other employee costs 7,259               8,458               

2,876,950        2,325,310        
Less amounts capitalised (202,498)          (125,301)          
Total employee benefits 2,674,452        2,200,009        

Accounting policy

Employee benefits
Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic benefits related
to a decrease in an asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. Employee benefits include, where
applicable, entitlements to wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave, long service leave, superannuation and any other
post-employment benefits.

Note 3.2 Materials and services
Consultants 779,440           470,538           
Contractors 1,475,763        1,875,202        
Materials (inlcuding Inventory) 1,169,204        451,575           
Freight 169,568           49,864             
Internal Plant Hire (78,741)            (94,245)            
Printing 35,298              27,848              
Utilities 81,277              81,949              
Total materials and services 3,631,809        2,862,731        

Accounting policy

Materials and services expense
Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic benefits related
to a decrease in asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.
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King Island Council

2019 2018
$ $

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 3.3 Depreciation and amortisation
Property

Buildings
Buildings 49,903             47,895              
Jetties 14,756             14,756              
Heritage buildings 565                  565                  

Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 295,139           226,147           
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 4,170               5,394               
Computers and telecommunications 18,197             18,642             

Infrastructure
Roads 702,017           680,105           
Bridges 131,515           133,349           
Aerodrome 427,045           418,491           
Drainage 26,760             25,472             
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 15,169             14,814             
Waste management 12,560             12,560             

Total 
depre

1,697,796        1,598,190        

Accounting policy

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.

Major depreciation periods used are listed below and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated:
Period

Buildings
   Buildings 20-100 years
   Building improvements 20-100 years

Jetties 40 years
   Heritage buildings 50-100 years
Plant and Equipment
  Plant, machinery and equipment 5-20 years
  Fixtures, fittings and furniture 5-20 years
  Computers and telecommunications 3-5 years
Roads
  Road pavements and seals 6-80 years
  Road formation 80-100 years
  Road footpath, kerb, channel and minor culverts 50-80 years
Bridges
   Bridges deck 30-60 years
   Bridges substructure 20-80 years
Other Infrastructure
   Drainage 70-80 years
   Recreational, leisure and community facilities 20-60 years
  Waste management 15-40years
   Aerodrome infrastructure 10-50 years

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in 
asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.

Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure and other assets having limited useful lives are systematically depreciated 
over their useful lives to Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets.  Estimates of 
remaining useful lives, residual values, depreciation rates and methods are made on a regular basis.

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned distinct useful 
lives and remaining values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component.

12



King Island Council

2019 2018
$ $

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 3.4 Finance costs
Interest - Borrowings 58,176             59,062             
Total finance costs 58,176             59,062             

Accounting policy
Finance expense

Note 3.5 Other expenses
Advertising 18,548             37,031             
Audit Panel Fees 5,259               7,095               
Bank Fees 11,105             5,483               
Commissions Paid 26,987             29,459             
Community Grants and sponsorship expenses 49,167             51,674             
Conferences and Training 11,748             62,222             
Council Rates 29,317             30,217             
Councillors' allowances 112,516           112,766           
Election expenses 21,217             1,375               
External audtiors' remuneration 53,350             31,970             
Fire Service Levy 104,460           107,691           
Insurance and registration 119,082           148,485           
Land Tax 27,559             26,504             
Licences and Permits 36,701             32,709             
Operating Lease 10,920             10,920             
Subscriptions and Memberships 74,131             20,425             
TasWater Charges 42,310             80,229             
Telecommunications and Internet 25,959             28,737             
Travel and Accommodation 67,183             21,271             
Other 34,189             74,013             
Total 
other 

881,708           920,276           

Accounting policy

Other expenses

Finance costs are expensed as incurred using the effective interest method.  Borrowing costs include interest on bank overdrafts, interest on 
borrowings, unwinding of discounts, and finance lease charges.

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in 
asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in 
asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.
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King Island Council

2019 2018
$ $

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 4 Investments    
Note 4.1 Investment in water corporation

Opening balance 4,977,407        4,913,633        
Change in fair value of investment
   Fair Value adjustments on available-for-sale assets -                   63,774             
   Fair Value adjustments on equity investment assets 722,377           -
Total investment in water corporation 5,699,784        4,977,407        

Council has derived returns from the water corporation as disclosed at note 2.9.

Accounting policy under AASB 9 - applicable from 1 July 2018

Equity Investment

Accounting policy under AASB 139 - applicable for 2018 comparative
Equity Investment

Note 5 Current Assets
Note 5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 300                  300                  
Cash at bank 712,416           2,414,410        
Cash invested at call 1,505,652        5,498               
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,218,368        2,420,208        

Cash and cash equivalents 2,218,368        2,420,208        
Investments (note 5.2) 4,302,904        4,356,395        
Total Funds 6,521,272        6,776,603        

Restricted funds
Trust funds and deposits (note 6.2) 289,958           357,355           
Discretionary reserves (note 8.1) 2,312,800        2,229,383        
Employee entitlements reserve (notes 6.4 & 8.1) 316,147           275,094           
Other reserve - restricted funds (note 8.1) 1,412,248        1,547,757        
Total Restricted Funds 4,331,153        4,409,589        

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and investments 2,190,119        2,367,014        

Accounting policy

Cash and cash equivalents

Total funds subject to restrictions

Council's cash and cash equivalents and investments (term deposits) are subject to a number of internal and external restrictions that limit 
amounts available for discretionary or future use. The restrictions are created by Council's Reserves Policy.  Amounts restricted in accordance 
with the policy are supported by specific investment accounts. Refer to note 8.1 for details of the policy.

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Council's investment in TasWater is valued at its fair value determined by Council's ownership interest against the water corporation's net 
asset value at balance date.  Any unrealised gains and losses are recognised through the Statement of Comprehensive Income to an 
Available-for-sale Fair value reserve each year (refer note 9.1).

Council has classified this asset as an Available-for-sale financial asset as defined in AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement and has followed AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation and AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures  to value and 
present the asset in the financial report. Council’s investment is not traded in an active market and is only sensitive to fluctuations in the value 
of TasWater’s net assets.

As Council's investment in TasWater is held for long-term strategic purposes, Council has elected under AASB 9: Financial Instruments  to 
irrevocably classify this equity investment as designated as fair value through other comprehensive income.  Subsequent changes in fair value 
on designated investments in equity instruments are recognised in other comprehensive income (for Fair Value Reserve, refer note 9.1) and 
are not reclassified through the profit or loss when derecognised.  Dividends associated with the equity investments are recognised in profit 
and loss when the right of payment has been established and it can be reliably measured.

Fair value was determined by using Council's ownership interest against the water corporation's net asset value at balance date.  At 30 June 
2019, Council continues to hold a 0.31% ownership interest in TasWater which is based on Schedule 2 of the Corporation's Constitution which 
reflects the Council's voting rights. 
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King Island Council

2019 2018
$ $

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 5.2 Investments
Term deposits 4,302,904        4,356,395        

4,302,904        4,356,395        

Note 5.3 Trade and other receivables
Current
Rates debtors 109,096           95,784             
Other debtors 431,907           303,907           
Net GST receivable 3,243               58,805             
Total trade and other receivables 544,246           458,496           

Accounting policy
Trade and other receivables
Accounting policy under AASB 9 - applicable from 1 July 2018

Accounting policy under AASB 139 - applicable for 2018 comparative

Note 5.4 Inventories
Inventories held for distribution 529,700           906,075           
Total inventories 529,700           906,075           

Accounting policy

Inventories

Note 5.5 Other assets
Prepayments 23,448              25,466              
Accrued income 76,268              123,144            
Total other assets 99,716              148,610            

Where inventories are acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, the cost shall be the current replacement cost as at the date of 
acquisition.

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost adjusted when applicable for any loss of service potential. 

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at amortised cost, which represents their transaction 
value.  Impairment is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis.  When determining whether the credit risk has increased significantly 
since initial recognition, and when estimating the ECL, Council considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available 
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on Council’s historical experience, 
an informed credit assessment and forward-looking information.  Council has established a provision matrix to facilitate the impairment 
assessment.
For rate debtors, Council takes the view that unpaid rates represent a charge against the rateable property that will be recovered when the 
property is next sold. For non-rate debtors.  Council writes off receivables when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe 
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Investments

Receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. A provision for impairment is recognised when there is 
objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred.    A provision for impairment on rates has not been established as unpaid rates 
represents a charge against the rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold.

Investments, other than investments in associates and property, are measured at cost.

Accounting policy
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King Island Council

Note 5.6 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 2019 2018
$ $

Summary
at cost 6,901,799         6,393,344         
Less accumulated depreciation (2,990,141)        (2,890,225)        

3,911,658         3,503,119         

at fair value as at 30 June 113,375,180     104,807,616     
Less accumulated depreciation (56,192,603)     (45,347,721)     

57,182,577       59,459,895       
Total 61,094,235       62,963,014       

Property
Land
at fair value as at 30 June 3,759,000         3,739,000         
Total Land 3,759,000         3,739,000         

Buildings 
at fair value as at 30 June 2,786,179         2,746,013         
Less accumulated depreciation (1,096,506)        (1,046,603)        

1,689,673         1,699,410         
Jetties
at cost 930,706            930,706            
Less accumulated depreciation (145,845)           (131,089)           

784,861            799,617            

Heritage buildings
at fair value as at 30 June 56,500              56,500              
Less accumulated depreciation (31,520)             (30,955)             

24,980              25,545              

Total Property 6,258,514         6,263,572         

Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
at cost 4,385,801         4,145,101         
Less accumulated depreciation (2,375,151)        (2,324,917)        

2,010,650         1,820,184         
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
at cost 105,262            98,852              
Less accumulated depreciation (78,203)             (74,033)             

27,059              24,819              
Computers and telecommunications
at cost 290,044            290,044            
Less accumulated depreciation (249,700)           (231,503)           

40,344              58,541              

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
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King Island Council

Note 5.6 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 2019 2018
$ $

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Infrastructure 
Roads
at fair value as at 30 June 70,017,881       69,549,029       
Less accumulated depreciation (31,966,152)     (31,264,135)     

38,051,729       38,284,894       
Bridges 
at fair value as at 30 June 7,627,707         7,627,707         
Less accumulated depreciation (4,224,830)        (4,093,315)        

3,402,877         3,534,392         
Aerodrome
at fair value as at 30 June 25,978,929       18,152,393       
Less accumulated depreciation (17,128,929)     (7,209,975)        

8,850,000         10,942,418       

Drainage
at fair value as at 30 June 2,098,127         2,056,893         
Less accumulated depreciation (1,407,511)        (1,380,751)        

690,616            676,142            
Recreational, leisure and community facilities
at fair value as at 30 June 1,050,857         880,081            
Less accumulated depreciation (337,155)           (321,987)           

713,702            558,094            
Waste management
at cost 672,452            672,453            
Less accumulated depreciation (141,242)           (128,683)           

531,210            543,770            

Total Infrastructure 52,240,134       54,539,710       

Works in progress
Buildings at cost 22,185              32,652              
Computers & Telecommunications at cost 31,486              31,486              
Roads at cost 24,376              20,170              
Aerodrome at cost 305,478            150,569            
Recreation and community facilities at cost 13,496              13,496              
Waste management at cost 120,513            7,815                
Total Works in progress 517,534            256,188            

Total property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 61,094,235      62,963,014      
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King Island Council

Note 5.6 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont.)

Reconciliation of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

2019

Balance at
beginning of 
financial year

Acquisition of 
assets

Revaluation
increments 

(decrements)

Depreciation 
and

amortisation 

Written down 
value of 

disposals Transfers
Balance at end of 

financial year

(note 8.1) (note 3.3)

Property
Land 3,739,000        -            20,000        -              -              -              3,759,000      
Total land 3,739,000        -            20,000        -              -              -              3,759,000      

Buildings 1,699,410        26,110      (49,903)       -              14,056         1,689,673      
Jetties 799,617           -            -              (14,756)       -              -              784,861         
Heritage buildings 25,545             -            -              (565)            -              -              24,980           
Total buildings 2,524,572        26,110      -              (65,224)       -              14,056         2,499,514      
Total property 6,263,572        26,110      20,000        (65,224)       -              14,056         6,258,514      

Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 1,820,184        558,152    -              (295,139)     (72,547)       -              2,010,650      
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 24,819             6,410         -              (4,170)         -              -              27,059           
Computers and telecommunications 58,541             -            -              (18,197)       -              -              40,344           
Total plant and equipment 1,903,544        564,562    -              (317,506)     (72,547)       -              2,078,053      

Infrastructure
Roads 38,284,894      468,852    -              (702,017)     -              -              38,051,729    
Bridges 3,534,392        -            -              (131,515)     -              -              3,402,877      
Aerodromes 10,942,418      39,017      (1,704,390)  (427,045)     -              -              8,850,000      
Drainage 676,142           41,234      (26,760)       -              -              690,616         
Recreation and community facilities 558,094           150,607    -              (15,169)       -              20,170         713,702         
Waste management 543,770           -            -              (12,560)       -              -              531,210         
Total infrastructure 54,539,710      699,710    (1,704,390)  (1,315,066)  -              20,170         52,240,134    

Works in progress
Buildings at cost 32,652             3,589         -              -              -              (14,056)       22,185           
Computers & Telecommunications at cost 31,486             -            -              -              -              -              31,486           
Roads at cost 20,170             24,376      -              -              -              (20,170)       24,376           
Aerodrome at cost 150,569           154,909    -              -              -              -              305,478         
Recreation and community facilities at cost 13,496             -            -              -              -              -              13,496           
Waste management at cost 7,815               112,698    -              -              -              -              120,513         
Total works in progress 256,188           295,572    -              -              -              (34,226)       517,534         
Total property, infrastructure, plant and 
equipment 62,963,014      1,585,954 (1,684,390)  (1,697,796)  (72,547)       -              61,094,235    

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

18



King Island Council Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 5.6 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont.)

Reconciliation of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

2018

Balance at
beginning of 
financial year

Acquisition of 
assets

Revaluation
increments 

(decrements)

Depreciation 
and

amortisation 

Written down 
value of 

disposals Transfers
Balance at end of 

financial year

(note 8.1) (note 3.3)

Property
Land 3,884,000 -            -              -              (145,000)     -              3,739,000      
Total land 3,884,000 0 -              -              (145,000)     -              3,739,000

Buildings 1,879,545 25,887 (47,895)       (183,333)     25,206         1,699,410      
Jetties 814,373 0 (14,756)       -              -              799,617         
Heritage buildings 26,110 0 (565)            -              -              25,545           
Total buildings 2,720,028 25,887 -              (63,216)       (183,333)     25,206 2,524,572
Total property 6,604,028 25,887 -              (63,216)       (328,333)     25,206 6,263,572

Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 1,873,035 299,009 (226,147)     (125,713)     1,820,184      
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 35,415 (5,394)         (5,202)         24,819           
Computers and telecommunications 73,433 3,750 (18,642)       58,541           
Total plant and equipment 1,981,883 302,759 -              (250,183)     (130,915)     -              1,903,544

Infrastructure
Roads 37,846,517      1,091,558 (680,105)     26,924         38,284,894    
Bridges 3,667,741        -            (133,349)     3,534,392      
Aerodromes 11,351,491      9,418         (418,491)     10,942,418    
Drainage 606,665           57,818      (25,472)       37,131         676,142         
Recreation and community facilities 475,356           74,372      (14,814)       23,180         558,094         
Waste management 359,201           189,024    (12,560)       8,105           543,770         
Total infrastructure 54,306,971      1,422,190 -              (1,284,791)  -              95,340         54,539,710    

Works in progress
Buildings at cost -                   32,652      32,652           
Computers & Telecommunications at cost 31,486             31,486           
Roads at cost 26,924             20,170      (26,924)       20,170           
Aerodrome at cost 6,016               144,553    150,569         
Drainage at cost 37,130             (37,130)       -                 
Recreation and community facilities at cost 56,867             5,015         (48,386)       13,496           
Waste management at cost 15,564             356            (8,105)         7,815             
Total works in progress 173,987           202,746    -              -              -              (120,545)     256,188         
Total property, infrastructure, plant and 
equipment 63,066,869      1,953,582 -              (1,598,190)  (459,248)     -              62,963,014    
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 5.6 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont.)

Threshold
$

Land
   Land          10,000 
Buildings
   Buildings          10,000 
   Building improvements          10,000 
   Heritage buildings          10,000 
Plant and Equipment
   Plant, machinery and equipment 2,000           
   Fixtures, fittings and furniture 2,000           
   Computers and telecommunications 2,000           
Roads
   Road pavements and seals 10,000         
   Road substructure 10,000         
   Road formation and earthworks 10,000         
   Road kerb, channel and minor culverts 10,000         
Bridges
   Bridges deck 10,000         
   Bridges substructure 10,000         
Other Infrastructure
   Drainage 10,000         
   Recreational, leisure and community facilities 10,000         
   Waste management 10,000         
Intangible assets
   Intangible assets 10,000         

Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues at fair value by 
Council valuation where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective asset class. Fair value is the price that would be received to 
sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs incurred during 
construction, and an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads.

The following classes of assets have been recognised.  In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits detailed below have applied when 
recognising assets within an applicable asset class and unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year:

Accounting policy

Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to 
the acquisition.

Recognition and measurement of assets
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King Island Council Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 5.6 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont.)

Council has adopted the following valuation bases for its non-current assets:

Land fair value
Buildings fair value
Jetties cost
Heritage buildings fair value
Plant, machinery and equipment cost
Fixtures, fittings and furniture cost
Computers and telecommunications cost
Roads fair value
Bridges fair value

fair value
Drainage fair value
Recreation  and community facilities fair value
Waste management cost

Impairment of assets

Accounting policy 

Revaluation

Aerodrome

Council has not taken up the value of land under roads for 2018-19.

Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, certain classes of non-current physical assets, as identified above, are measured at their fair value in 
accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant & Equipment  and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement . At balance date, Council reviewed the carrying 
value of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure that each asset class materially approximated its fair value.  Where the 
carrying value materially differed from the fair value at balance date the class of asset was revalued.

In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and infrastructure assets on a regular basis  to ensure valuations represent 
fair value.  The valuation is performed either by experienced Council officers or independent experts.Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy.  Changes to the valuation hierarchy will only occur if an external 
change in the restrictions or limitations of use on an asset result in changes to the permissible or practical highest and best use of the asset. 

Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that an 
increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense. In that case the increment is recognised 
as revenue up to the amount of the expense.  Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior increments are included in 
the asset revaluation surplus for that class of asset. In that case the decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the remaining increments.  
Within the same class of assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are offset.

Land under roads

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income under other expenses.
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income under other revenue.
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King Island Council

2019 2018
$ $

Note 6 Current liabilities
Note 6.1 Trade and other payables

Trade payables 380,407      419,297      
Accrued expenses 157,603      207,654      
Total trade and other payables 538,010      626,951      

Accounting policy

Trade and other payables

For ageing analysis of trade and other payables, refer to note 8.8 (d).

Note 6.2 Trust funds and deposits
Refundable building deposits 86,787        156,787      
Trust funds for community groups 164,678      161,997      
Trust funds for bursaries 29,857        30,250        
Other trust funds 8,636          8,322          
Total trust funds and deposits 289,958      357,356      

Accounting policy

Trust funds and deposits

Note 6.3 Provisions
Annual leave Long service 

leave
Total

2019 $ $ $
Balance at beginning of the financial year 173,438      126,497      299,935      
Additional provisions 296,356      51,426        347,782      
Amounts used (270,215)     (32,807)       (303,022)     
Balance at the end of the financial year 199,579      145,116      344,695      

2018
Balance at beginning of the financial year        122,296 108,074      230,370      
Additional provisions 77,999        48,845        126,844      
Amounts used (26,857)       (30,422)       (57,279)       
Balance at the end of the financial year 173,438      126,497      299,935      

2019 2018
(a) Employee benefits $ $
(i) Current 
Annual leave 199,579      173,438      
Long service leave 82,185        76,073        

281,764      249,511      
(ii) Non-current
Long service leave 62,931        50,424        

62,931        50,424        
Aggregate carrying amount of employee benefits:
Current 281,764      249,511      
Non-current 62,931        50,424        

344,695      299,935      

Amounts received as tender deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they are returned or forfeited. 
Council has also been entrusted to manage several trust funds on behalf of the community, These have arisen from donations and bequests and have 
specific rules regarding permitted expenditure and investment of interest earnings.

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services provided to Council as at balance date whether or not invoices 
have been received.  General Creditors are unsecured, not subject to interest charges and are normally settled within 30 days of invoice receipt.
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2019 2018
$ $

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 6.3 Provisions (continued)

(iii) Current

199,579      173,438      

82,185        76,073        
       281,764        249,511 

(iv) Non-current
   Long service leave representing less than 10 years of continuous service measured at present value 62,931        50,424        

(v)  Employee Numbers 33               

Accounting policy

Employee benefits
i) Short term obligations

ii) Other long term employee benefit obligations

iii) Sick leave

iv) Defined benefit superannuation scheme

v) Defined contribution superannuation plans

Accounting policy

Land fill restoration

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the statement of financial position if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

No accrual is made for sick leave as Council experience indicates that, on average, sick leave taken in each reporting period is less than the 
entitlement accruing in that period, and this experience is expected to recur in future reporting periods. Council does not make payment for untaken 
sick leave.

A liability or asset in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans would ordinarily be recognised in the statement of financial position, and 
measured as the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date plus unrecognised actuarial gains (less unrecognised actuarial 
losses) less the fair value of the superannuation fund’s assets at that date and any unrecognised past service cost. The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation is based on expected future payments which arise from membership of the fund to the reporting date, calculated annually by 
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of 
employee departures and periods of service. However, when this information is not reliably available, Council accounts for its obligations to defined 
benefit plans on the same basis as its obligations to defined contribution plans i.e as an expense when it becomes payable.

Council makes superannuation contributions for a number of its employees to the Quadrant Defined Benefits Fund (the Fund), a sub-fund of the 
Tasplan Superannuation Fund (Tasplan).   The Quadrant Defined Benefits Fund has been classified as a multi-employer sponsored plan.  As the 
Fund’s assets and liabilities are pooled and are not allocated by employer, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between 
employers.  As provided under paragraph 34 of AASB 119 Employee Benefits , Council does not use defined benefit accounting for these 
contributions.

Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. 

Council operates two landfill sites, one of which is for inert waste only. Licence conditions require these be remediated as product is received.
No restoration provision exists. See note 8.7.

All annual leave and the long service leave entitlements representing 10 or more years of continuous service

   - Other long-term employee benefits that do not fall due within 12 months after the end of the period measured at 
       present value

   - Short-term employee benefits, that fall due within 12 months after the end of the period measured at nominal value

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the 
period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and 
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for annual leave is recognised in the provision for 
employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

The liability for long service leave and annual leave which is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future 
payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. 
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future 
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that 
match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
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King Island Council

2019 2018
$ $

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 7 Non-current 
liabilities

Note 7.1 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Current
Borrowings - secured 148,349      197,022      

148,349      197,022      
Non-current
Borrowings - secured 1,040,655   1,189,004   

1,040,655   1,189,004   

Total 1,189,004   1,386,026   

Borrowings
Under the terms of its Deed of Charge with the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation, Council's borrowings are secured by a floating
charge over its property .

The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:
Not later than one year -              53,820        
Later than one year and not later than five years 330,897      433,771      
Later than five years 858,107      898,434      
Total 1,189,004   1,386,025   

Accounting policy

Interest bearing liabilities

Interest is expensed as it accrues and no interest has been capitalised during the current or comparative reporting period. There have been no 
defaults or breaches of the loan agreement during the period.  Borrowings are secured by way of mortgages over the general rates of the Council.

The borrowing capacity of Council is limited by the Local Government Act 1993 . Interest bearing liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of 
transaction costs incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition these liabilities are measured at amortised cost.  Any difference between the proceeds (net 
of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period of the liability using the 
effective interest method.
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King Island Council

Note 8
Note 8.1 Reserves

$ $ $ $
(a) Asset revaluation reserve
2019

Property
Land 3,210,166                20,000                           -                           3,230,166                 
Buildings 25,706                     -                                 -                           25,706                      

3,235,872                20,000                           -                           3,255,872                 
Infrastructure
Roads and Bridges 30,604,369              -                                 -                           30,604,369               
Drainage 414,859                   -                                 -                           414,859                    
Aerodrome 7,877,445                -                                 (1,704,390)               6,173,055                 

38,896,673              -                                 (1,704,390)               37,192,283               

Total asset revaluation reserve 42,132,545              20,000                           (1,704,390)               40,448,155               

2018
Property
Land 3,210,166                -                                 -                           3,210,166                 
Buildings 25,706                     -                                 -                           25,706                      

3,235,872                -                                 -                           3,235,872                 
Infrastructure
Roads and Bridges 30,604,369              -                                 -                           30,604,369               
Drainage 414,859                   -                                 -                           414,859                    
Aerodrome 7,877,445                -                                 -                           7,877,445                 

38,896,673              -                                 -                           38,896,673               

Total asset revaluation reserve 42,132,545              -                                 -                           42,132,545               

(b) Fair value reserve
2019
Equity Investment assets
Investment in water corporation 429,194                   722,377                         -                           1,151,571                 
Total fair value reserve 429,194                   722,377                         -                           1,151,571                 

2018
Available-for-sale assets
Investment in water corporation 365,420                   63,774                           -                           429,194                    
Total fair value reserve 365,420                   63,774                           -                           429,194                    

(c) Other reserves
2019
Discretionary Reserves
Lighthouse Reserve 159,290                   3,925                             (2,259)                      160,956                    
Community Reserve 1,492,988                98,280                           (68,749)                    1,522,519                 
Naracoopa Jetty Reserve 160,759                   46,961                           (5,000)                      202,720                    
Grassy Mine Infrastructure Reserve 12,855                     317                                -                           13,172                      
Housing Reserve 403,491                   9,942                             -                           413,433                    

2,229,383                159,425                         (76,008)                    2,312,800                 

Other Reserves
Employee entitlements reserve 275,094                   41,053                           -                           316,147                    
Restricted funds 1,547,757                1,243,492                      (1,379,001)               1,412,248                 

1,822,851                1,284,545                      (1,379,001)               1,728,395                 

Total Other Reserves 4,052,234                1,443,970                      (1,455,009)               4,041,195                 

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Council has designated its investment in Taswater as an equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.  Subsequent changes in 
fair value are reflected in the reserve and will not be reclassified through the profit or loss when derecognised.  Equity Investment assets within the Fair 
value reserve were previously classified as 'Available-for-sale assets' . 

The asset revaluation reserve was established to capture the movements in asset valuations upon the periodic revaluation of Council's assets.

Balance at
beginning of reporting 

year Increment  (Decrement)
Balance at end of 

reporting year

Other financial information
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Note 8.1 Reserves (continued)

$ $ $ $
(c) Other reserves (continued)
Discretionary Reserves
2018
Lighthouse Reserve 160,896                   3,413                             (5,019)                      159,290                    
Community Reserve 1,456,815                134,413                         (98,240)                    1,492,988                 
Naracoopa Jetty Reserve 120,905                   45,565                           (5,711)                      160,759                    
Grassy Mine Infrastructure Reserve 58,437                     1,240                             (46,822)                    12,855                      
Housing Reserve -                           403,491                         -                           403,491                    

1,797,053                588,122                         (155,792)                  2,229,383                 

Other Reserves
Employee entitlements reserve 230,370                   44,724                           -                           275,094                    
Restricted funds 1,743,323                1,119,671                      (1,315,237)               1,547,757                 

1,973,693                1,164,395                      (1,315,237)               1,822,851                 

Total Other Reserves 3,770,746                1,752,517                      (1,471,029)               4,052,234                 

2019 2018
$ $

Reserves 
Asset revaluation reserve 40,448,155               42,132,545               
Fair value reserve 1,151,571                 429,194                    
Other reserves 4,041,195                                  4,052,234 
Total Reserves 45,640,921               46,613,973               

Other Reserves
Discretionary reserves are reserves that provide capital for the expansion of Council's infrastructure or capital base. Statutory reserves are maintained 
for employee entitlements and restricted funds for unexpended grant revenue.

Restricted Funds
Restricted funds relate to grants and subsidies that span two or more financial years with specific restrictions in the funding agreement or grant deed. 
Grants and subsidies are determined as restricted if the funds are not available to be used in any other manner and may be repayable if these 
requirements are not met.

Discretionary Reserves

Balance at end of 
reporting year

Council's Financial Reserves Policy identifies a number of specific strategic purposes for which funds are set aside for future use. These funds are 
invested in term deposits in line with the Policy. Council approves transactions into and out of these term deposits as required under the Policy.

Lighthouse Reserve
Ownership of the Currie lighthouse was transferred to Council from the Federal Government. Council received an initital capital grant to be used for the 
ongoing maintenance of the Lighthouse.

Community Reserve
In return for transferring water and sewer assets to Cradle Mountain Water (now TasWater) in 2009, Council received payment of a capital sum. The 
funds are reserved to finance discretionary projects that benefit the King Island community.

Naracoopa Jetty
Ownership of the jetty was transferred to Council in 2008. Council received an initial capital grant for its upgrading and ongoing maintenance.

Grassy Mine Infrastructure Reserve
A reserve was established and managed under conditions prescribed in a Part 5 Agreement attached to the planning permit issued to King Island 
Scheelite. The purpose of the reserve is to provide infrastructure for the benefit of the Grassy community.

Housing Reserve
Council established a separate reserve in 2018 after the sale of a Council-owned house. The purpose of the reserve is to contribute to future 
accommodation needs. This reserve is not specifically identified in Council's Financial Reserves Policy.

Balance at
beginning of reporting 

year Increment  (Decrement)
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2019 2018
$ $

Note 8.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus (deficit)
Result from continuing operations (470,638)                  169,541                    

Depreciation/amortisation 1,697,796                 1,598,190                 
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 34,410                      20,620                      
Capital grants received specifically for new or upgraded assets (646,940)                  (517,006)                  
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables (85,749)                    (92,725)                    
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 48,894                      16,952                      
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 376,375                    (133,276)                  
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (88,941)                    399,849                    
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 44,760                      49,884                      
GST attributable to expenditure on property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 127,536                    173,455                    
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 1,037,503                 1,685,484                 

Note 8.3

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
1,386,026                 1,606,896                 
(197,022)                  (220,870)                  

1,189,004                 1,386,026                 

Note 8.4 Financing arrangements
Bank overdraft 220,000                    220,000                    
Unused facilities 220,000                    220,000                    

Note 8.5 Superannuation
Defined Benefits Funds

The financial assumptions used to calculate the Accrued Benefits for the Fund were:
n Net Investment Return  7.0% p.a. 
n Salary Inflation   4.0% p.a.
n Price Inflation   n/a

The actuarial review concluded that:
n
n

n

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Statement of Cash Flows 
as cash flows from financing activities.

Balance at start of period

The value of assets of the Fund was adequate to meet the liabilities of the Fund in respect of vested benefits as at 30 June 2017
The value of assets of the Fund was adequate to meet the value of the liabilities of the Fund in respect of accrued benefits as at 30 June 2017.

The Actuary recommended that the Council contribute 9.5% of salaries in 2017/18 and 0% from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021. As a result, the amount of 
contributions paid to defined benefits schemes during the reporting period was $nil (2017-18, $1310).
The Actuary will continue to undertake a brief review of the financial position the Fund at the end of each financial year to confirm that the contribution 
rates remain appropriate.  The next full triennial actuarial review of the Fund will have an effective date of 30 June 2020 and is expected to be completed 
late in 2020.

Cash repayments

Rice Warner Pty Ltd undertook the last actuarial review of the Fund at 30 June 2017.  The review disclosed that at that time the net market value of 

Council has, in prior years, made superannuation contributions for one of its employees to the Quadrant Defined Benefits Fund (the Fund), a sub-fund of 
the Tasplan Superannuation Fund (Tasplan).   The Fund has been classified as a multi-employer sponsored plan.  As the Fund’s assets and liabilities 
are pooled and are not allocated by employer, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers.  As provided 
under paragraph 34 of AASB 119 Employee Benefits , Council does not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions.

For the year ended 30 June 2018 the Council contributed 9.5% of the employees’ income, for the period that they elected to have these contributions 
directed to the Fund.  Assets accumulate in the Fund to meet member benefits as they accrue, and if assets within the Fund are insufficient to satisfy 
benefits payable, the Council is required to meet its share of the deficiency.

Based on the assumptions used, and assuming the Employer contributes at the levels described below, the value of the assets is expected to 
continue to be adequate to meet the value of the liabilities of the Fund in respect of vested benefits at all times during the period up to 30 June 
2017.

Balance at close of period
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Note 8.5 Superannuation (continued)
Defined Benefits Funds (continued)
As required in terms of paragraph 148 of AASB 119 Employee Benefits , Council discloses the following details:
n

n

n

n

n

n
n

Council has recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income the following amounts
as contributions to superannuation schemes.

2019 2018
$ $

Defined benefits fund - (the Fund) -                           1,310                        
Accumulation funds 250,859                    200,932                    

250,859                    202,242                    

Note 8.6 Operating leases
Operating lease commitments

Not later than one year 10,920                      10,920                      
Later than one year and not later than five years 15,470                      27,451                      

26,390                      38,371                      

Note 8.7 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liabilities

The Quadrant Defined Benefits Fund has been classified as a multi-employer sponsored plan.  As the Fund’s assets and liabilities are pooled and 
are not allocated by employer, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers. Thus the Fund is not able 
to prepare standard AASB119 defined benefit reporting.

Under the aggregate funding method of financing the benefits, the stability of the Councils’ contributions over time depends on how closely the 
Fund’s actual experience matches the expected experience. If the actual experience differs from that expected, the Councils’ contribution rate may 
need to be adjusted accordingly to ensure the Fund remains on course towards financing members’ benefits.

In terms of Rule 27.4 of the Tasplan Trust Deed (Trust Deed), there is a risk that employers within the Fund may incur an additional liability when 
an Employer ceases to participate in the Fund at a time when the assets of the Fund are less than members’ vested benefits. Each member of the 
Fund who is an employee of the Employer who is ceasing to Participate is required to be provided with a benefit at least equal to their vested 
benefit in terms of Rule 27.4 (b) (A). However, there is no provision in the Trust Deed requiring an employer to make contributions other than its 
regular contributions up to the date of cessation of contributions. This issue can be resolved by the Trustee seeking an Actuarial Certificate in 
terms of Rule 26.5 identifying a deficit and the Trustee determining in terms of Rule 26.3(c) that the particular employer should make the payment 
required to make good any shortfall before the cessation of participation is approved. 

The application of Fund assets on Tasplan being wound-up is set out in Rule 41.4. This Rule provides that expenses and taxation liabilities should 
have first call on the available assets. Additional assets will initially be applied for the benefit of the then remaining members and/or their 
dependants in such manner as the Trustee considers equitable and appropriate in accordance with the Applicable Requirements (broadly, 
superannuation and taxation legislative requirements and other requirements as determined by the regulators).

The Trust Deed does not contemplate the Fund withdrawing from Tasplan. However it is likely that Rule 27.4 would be applied in this case (as 
detailed above).

The Fund is a defined benefit fund.

During the next reporting period the expected amount of contributions to be paid to defined benefits schemes is $nil.
As reported above, Assets exceeded accrued benefits as at the date of the last actuarial review, 30 June 2017. Moderate investment returns, 
since that date, make it quite probable that this is still the position. The financial position of the Fund will be fully investigated at the actuarial review 
An analysis of the assets and vested benefits of sub-funds participating in the Scheme, prepared by Rice Warner Pty Ltd as at 30 June 2018, 
As at 30 June 2018 the Fund had 119 members and the total employer contributions and member contributions for the year ending 30 June 2018 
were $1,515,272 and $266,000 respectively.

At the reporting date, Council had the following obligations under non-cancellable operating leases for the lease of equipment for use within Council's 
activities (these obligations are not recognised as liabilities):

Accumulation Funds
Council also contributes to other "accumulation" superannuation schemes.  The Council has no ongoing responsibility to make good any deficiencies that may 
occur in those schemes. 

Council operates a landfill at Parenna that may require site rehabilitation in the future. Council has commissioned investigations to assess the need for 
future rehabilitation and if so, the potential financial impact of such rehabilitation. Until these works are finalised, Council is unable to accurately assess 
the financial implications of future rehabilitation or remediation.

During the year Council made the required superannuation contributions for all eligible employees to appropriate complying superannuation funds, as required by 
the Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992 and the terms of employment agreements.

During the reporting period the amount of contributions paid to accumulation schemes was $25,859 (2017-18, $200,932).

The 2017 actuarial review used the “aggregate” funding method. This is a standard actuarial funding method. The results from this method were 
tested by projecting future fund assets and liabilities for a range of future assumed investment returns. The funding method used is consistent with 
the method used at the previous actuarial review in 2014.
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Note 8.8  Financial Instruments
(a) Interest Rate Risk

2019

1 year or 
less

Over 1 to 5 
years

More than 5 
years

Non-interest 
bearing Total

$ $ $ $ $ $
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.22% 2,218,068     -                -                -                300                 2,218,368        
Financial assets 2.50% -                4,302,904     -                -                -                  4,302,904        
Trade and other receivables 1.62% 109,096        -                -                -                435,150          544,246           
Investment in water corporation -                -                -                -                5,699,784       5,699,784        
Total financial assets 2,327,164     4,302,904     -                -                6,135,234       12,765,302      

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables -                -                -                -                538,010          538,010           
Trust funds and deposits -                -                -                -                289,958          289,958           
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 3.70% -                148,349        1,040,655     -                -                  1,189,004        
Total financial liabilities -                148,349        1,040,655     -                827,968          2,016,972        

Net financial assets (liabilities) 2,327,164     4,154,555     (1,040,655)   -                5,307,266       10,748,330      

2018

1 year or 
less

Over 1 to 5 
years

More than 5 
years

Non-interest 
bearing Total

$ $ $ $ $ $
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.65% 2,419,908     -                -                300                 2,420,208        
Financial assets 1.87% -                4,356,395     -                -                  4,356,395        
Trade and other receivables 1.62% 95,784          -                -                -                362,712          458,496           
Investment in water corporation -                -                -                -                4,977,407       4,977,407        
Total financial assets 2,515,692     4,356,395     -                -                5,340,419       12,212,506      

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables -                -                -                -                626,951          626,951           
Trust funds and deposits -                -                -                -                357,356          357,356           
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 4.12% -                197,022        556,597        632,407        -                  1,386,026        
Total financial liabilities -                197,022        556,597        632,407        984,307          2,370,333        

Net financial assets (liabilities) 2,515,692     4,159,373     (556,597)      (632,407)      4,356,112       9,842,173        

The exposure to interest rate risk and the effective interest rates of financial assets and financial liabilities, both recognised and unrecognised, at balance date
are as follows:

Weighted 
average 

interest rate

Fixed interest maturing in:

Fixed interest maturing in:

Floating 
interest

 rate

Floating 
interest

 rate

Weighted 
average 

interest rate
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Note 8.8  Financial Instruments (cont.)
(b) Fair Value
The aggregate net fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, both recognised and unrecognised, at balance date are as follows:

Financial Instruments
2019 2018 2019 2018

$ $ $ $
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,218,368 2,420,208 2,218,368 2,420,208
Investments 4,302,904 4,356,395 4,302,904 4,356,395
Rates 109,096 95,784 109,096 95,784
Trade and Other Receivables 435,150 362,712 435,150 363,187
Investment in water corporation 5,699,784 4,977,407 5,699,784 4,977,407
Total financial assets 12,765,302 12,212,506 12,765,302 12,212,981

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 538,010 626,951 538,010 626,951
Trust funds and deposits 289,958 357,356 289,958 357,355
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 1,189,004 1,386,026 1,291,177 1,396,343
 Total financial liabilities 2,016,972 2,370,333 2,119,145 2,380,649

(c) Credit Risk

(d) Risks and mitigation

Market risk

Interest rate risk

 - conformity with State and Federal regulations and standards,
 - capital protection,
 - appropriate liquidity,
 - diversification by credit rating, financial institution and investment product,
 - monitoring of return on investment,
 - benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.

The risks associated with Council's main financial instruments and Council's policies for minimising these risks are detailed 

 - ensuring access to diverse sources of funding;
 - reducing risks of refinancing by managing in accordance with target maturity profiles; and
 - setting prudential limits on interest repayments as a percentage of rate revenue.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Council's exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to 
foreign currency risk. Components of market risk to which we are exposed are discussed below.

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will fluctuate due to changes 
in market interest rates. Interest rate risk arises from interest  bearing financial assets and liabilities that we use. Non derivative interest bearing 
assets are predominantly short term liquid assets. Our interest rate liability risk arises primarily from long term loans and borrowings at fixed rates 
which exposes us to fair value interest rate risk.
Our loan borrowings are sourced from major Australian banks by a tender process. Finance leases are sourced from major Australian financial 
institutions. Overdrafts are arranged with major Australian banks. We manage interest rate risk on our net debt portfolio by:

We manage the interest rate exposure on our debt portfolio by appropriate budgeting strategies and obtaining approval for borrowings from the 
Department of Treasury and Finance each year.

Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1993 . We manage interest rate risk by 
adopting an investment policy that ensures:

Maturity will be staggered to provide for interest rate variations and to minimise interest rate risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial asset is represented by the carrying amount 
of those assets as indicated in the Statement of Financial Position.

Aggregate net fair valueTotal carrying amount as per 
Balance Sheet
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Note 8.8  Financial Instruments (cont.)

Credit risk

 - we have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities we deal with; 
 - we may require collateral where appropriate; and

Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Financial 

Institutions
Government 

agencies
Other Total

2019
(AAA credit 

rating)
(BBBB credit 

rating)
(min BBB credit 

rating)
2,218,368        -                  -                  2,218,368        

-                  -                  544,246           544,246           
Investments and other financial assets 4,302,904        -                  -                  4,302,904        
Total contractual financial assets 6,521,272        -                  544,246           7,065,518        

2018
2,419,908        -                  -                  2,419,908        

-                  -                  458,496           458,496           
Investments and other financial assets 4,356,395        -                  -                  4,356,395        
Total contractual financial assets 6,776,303        -                  458,496           7,234,799        

Ageing of Trade and Other Receivables

2019 2018
$ $

Current (not yet due) 322,222           280,652           
Past due by up to 30 days 51,746            7,079              
Past due between 31 and 180 days 101,003           104,164           
Past due between 181 and 365 days -                  4,844              
Past due by more than 1 year 69,275            61,757            
Total Trade & Other Receivables 544,246           458,496           

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause Council to make a financial 
loss. Council have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in our Statement of Financial Position. To help manage this risk:

Credit risk arises from Council's financial assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other receivables. Council's exposure 
to credit risk arises from potential default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. 
Exposure at balance date is addressed in each applicable policy note.  Council generally trades with recognised, creditworthy third parties, and as 
such collateral is generally not requested, nor is it Council's policy to securitise its trade and other receivables.
It is Council's policy that some customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures including an assessment 
of their credit rating, financial position, past experience and industry reputation.
In addition, receivable balance are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that Council's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Trade and other receivables

At balance date other debtors representing financial assets were past due but not impaired. These amounts relate to a number of independent 
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing of the Council's Trade and Other Receivables was:

Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the Statement of Financial Position, such as when Council 
provides a guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 8.7.

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

 - we only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in our Investment policy.
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Note 8.8  Financial Instruments (cont.)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of our operational liquidity requirements:
 - we will not have sufficient funds to settle a transaction on the date;

 - we may be unable to settle or recover a financial assets at all.

To help reduce these risks we:
 - have a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained;
 - have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;
 - have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid instruments;
 - monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and
 - set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal repayments to rate revenue.

2019 6 mths 6-12 1-2 2-5 >5 Contracted Carrying
or less months years years years Cash Flow Amount

$ $ $ $ $ $ $
Trade and other payables 538,010 - - - - 538,010 538,010
Trust funds and deposits 8,636 86,787 - - 194,535 289,958 289,958
Interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 73,519 74,830 153,689 254,559 632,407 1,189,004 1,189,004
Total financial liabilities 620,165 161,617 153,689 254,559 826,942 2,016,972 2,016,972

2018 6 mths 6-12 1-2 2-5 >5 Contracted Carrying
or less months years years years Cash Flow Amount

$ $ $ $ $ $ $
Trade and other payables 626,951 - - - - 626,951 626,951
Trust funds and deposits 8,322 156,787 - - 192,246 357,355 357,355
Interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 98,511 98,511 302,037 254,559 632,407 1,386,025 1,386,025
Total financial liabilities 733,784 255,298 302,037 254,559 824,653 2,370,331 2,370,331

(e) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Profit Equity Profit Equity
2019 $ $ $ $ $
Financial assets:

2,218,368 (22,184) (22,184) 22,184 22,184
Investments 4,302,904 (43,029) (43,029) 43,029 43,029

544,246 (5,442) (5,442) 5,442 5,442
Financial liabilities:

1,189,004 (11,890) (11,890) 11,890 11,890

Profit Equity Profit Equity
2018 $ $ $ $ $
Financial assets:

2,420,208 (24,202) (24,202) 24,202 24,202
Investments 4,356,395 (43,564) (43,564) 43,564 43,564

458,496 (4,585) (4,585) 4,585 4,585
Financial liabilities:

1,386,026 (13,860) (13,860) 13,860 13,860

 - A parallel shift of + 1% and -1% in market interest rates (AUD) from the year-end base rate of 1.25%.

The table below lists the contractual maturities for Financial Liabilities.

These amounts represent the discounted cash flow payments (ie principal only).

Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and experience of the financial 
markets, the Council believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months (Base rate is the Reserve Bank of 
Australia overnight cash rate):

Cash and cash equivalents

The Council's exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods' data and current assessment of risk.

 - we will be forced to sell financial assets at a value which is less than what they are worth; or

The table below discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of financial instruments held by Council at year-end, if 
the above movements were to occur.

Trade and other receivables

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Interest rate risk
-1 % +1%

Interest rate risk

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

-1 % 

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

+1%
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Note 9
Note 9.1

Council measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis:
Investment in water corporation
Property, infrastructure plant and equipment
- Land
- Buildings, including footpaths & cycleways
- Roads
- Bridges
- Aerodrome
- Other infrastructure

(a) Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 
Level 2
Level 3

As at 30 June 2019
Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Recurring fair value measurements $ $ $ $
Land 0 -                  3,759,000           -                   3,759,000     
Buildings incl Heritage Buildings 0 -                  1,714,653           -                   1,714,653     
Roads 0 -                  -                      38,051,729      38,051,729   
Bridges 0 -                  -                      3,402,877        3,402,877     
Drainage 0 -                  -                      690,616           690,616        
Aerodrome 0 -                  -                      8,850,000        8,850,000     
Other Infrastructure 0 -                  -                      713,702           713,702        
Investment in water corporation 4.1 -                  -                      5,699,784        5,699,784     

-                  5,473,653           57,408,708      62,882,361   

As at 30 June 2018
Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Recurring fair value measurements $ $ $ $
Land 0 -                  3,739,000           -                   3,739,000     
Buildings incl Heritage Buildings 0 -                  1,699,410           25,545             1,724,955     
Roads 0 -                  -                      38,284,894      38,284,894   
Bridges 0 -                  -                      3,534,392        3,534,392     
Drainage 0 -                  -                      676,142           676,142        
Aerodrome 0 -                  -                      10,942,418      10,942,418   
Other Infrastructure 0 -                  -                      558,094           558,094        
Investment in water corporation 4.1 -                  -                      4,977,407        4,977,407     

-                  5,438,410           58,998,892      64,437,302   
Transfers between levels of the hierarchy 

(b) Highest and best use

(c) Valuation techniques and significant inputs used to derive fair values

Investment in water corporation 

Land 

Buildings

Other

Council's policy is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement  requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a level in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where it is available, and minimise the use 
of entity specific estimates. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case for 
Council infrastructure assets, which are of a specialist nature for which there is no active market for similar or identical assets. These assets are valued using a 
combination of observable and unobservable inputs.

Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date. 
Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 
Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The table below shows the assigned level for each asset and liability held at fair value by the Council. The table presents the Council's assets and liabilities 
measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2019. 

All assets valued at fair value in this note are being used for their highest and best use.

Refer to Notes 4.1 for details of the valuation technique used to derive fair value.

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Fair Value Measurements

Valuation of land (excluding land under roads)was undertaken by the Valuer General as at 1 July 2016. The valuation of land is at fair value, being market 
value based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land planning provisions.  Land on which the Aerodrome is sited was included in the revaluation of 
this asset.  Details are provided below.

Council does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis.

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year, nor between levels 2 and 3.

Valuation of  buildings were undertaken by the Valuer General as at 1 July 2016.  The valuation of buildings is at fair value based on gross replacement cost 
less accumulated depreciation at the date of valuation.  
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Note 9 Other

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 9.1 Fair Value Measurements (continued)
Valuation techniques and significant inputs used to derive fair values (continued)

Infrastructure assets 

Roads

Bridges

Drainage

Aerodrome

Other Infrastructure
Other infrastructure is not deemed to be significant in terms of Council's Statement of Financial Position.

(d) Unobservable inputs and sensitivities
Asset category* Carrying amount (at fair value) 
Investment in Water Corporation 5,699,784 Refer to note 4.1 for a description of the valuation basis.

(e)  Changes in recurring level 3 fair value measurements

There have been no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 measurements during the year.

(f) Valuation processes

(g) Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed

Note 9.2 Events occurring after balance date 

(a) After a competitive process, Council appointed a new General Manager in July 2019. Mr Gregory (Greg) Alomes commenced in this role on 5 August 2019.

*There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

A valuation of the aerodrome was undertaken by Opteon Property Group Pty Ltd in October 2018. This valuation comprises the asset's current replacement 
cost less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset. 

Non-recurring fair value measurements are made at the point of reclassification by a registered valuer.

Council borrowings are measured at amortised cost with interest recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The fair value of borrowings disclosed in note 8.8 is 
provided by Tascorp (level 2).

Council has assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disclosed in other notes. 

The changes in level 3 property plant and equipment assets with recurring fair value measurements are detailed in note 5.6 (Property, infrastructure, plant and 
equipment). Heritage buildings, which are classified as level 3 are separately disclosed in note 5.6. Investment in water corporation, which is classified as level 
3 has been separately disclosed in note 4.1.  

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature (Level 2).

Council's current policy for the valuation of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment, investment in water corporation and investment property (recurring 
fair value measurements) is set out in notes 4.1, 5.6, and 5.7 respectively.

The methods for calculating CRC are described under individual asset categories below.

Roads have been valued by Johnstone, McGee & Gandy Pty Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2012. Council categorises its road infrastructure into urban and 
rural roads and then further sub-categorises these into sealed and unsealed roads. All road segments are then componentised into formation, pavement, sub-
pavement and seal (where applicable). Council assumes that environmental factors such as soil type, climate and topography are consistent across each 
segment. Council also assumes a segment is designed and constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and materials.

CRC is based on the road area multiplied by a unit price; the unit price being an estimate of labour and material inputs, services costs, and overhead 
allocations.  For internal construction estimates, material and services prices are based on existing supplier contract rates or supplier price lists and labour 
wage rates are based on Council's Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA). Where construction is outsourced, CRC is based on the average of completed 
similar projects over the last few years.

A full valuation of bridges assets was undertaken by independent valuers, Auspan, during the year ended 30 June 2015. Each bridge is assessed individually 
and componentised into sub-assets representing the deck and sub-structure.The valuation is based on the material type used for construction and the deck 
and sub-structure area. 

All Council infrastructure assets were fair valued using written down current replacement cost. This valuation comprises the asset's current replacement cost 
(CRC) less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset. 
Council first determined the gross cost of replacing the full service potential of the asset and then adjusted this amount to take account of the expired service 
potential of the asset.

CRC was measured by reference to the lowest cost at which the gross future economic benefits of the asset could currently be obtained in the normal course 
of business. The resulting valuation reflects the cost of replacing the existing economic benefits based on an efficient set of modern equivalent assets to 
achieve the required level of service output.

The unit rates (labour and materials) and quantities applied to determine the CRC of an asset or asset component were based on a "Greenfield" assumption 
meaning that the CRC was determined as the full cost of replacement with a new asset including components that may not need to be replaced, such as 
earthworks. 

The level of accumulated depreciation for infrastructure assets was determined based on the age of the asset and the useful life adopted by Council for the 
asset type. Estimated useful lives and residual values are disclosed in Note 5.6.

A full valuation of drainage infrastructure was undertaken by Council's Technical Officer, effective 30 June 2014. Similar to roads, drainage assets are 
managed in segments; pits and pipes being the major components.

The calculation of DRC involves a number of inputs that require judgement and are therefore classed as unobservable. While these judgements are made by 
qualified and experienced staff, different judgements could result in a different valuation. The table at (d) below summarises the effect that changes in the most 
significant unobservable inputs would have on the valuation.

Consistent with roads, Council assumes that environmental factors such as soil type, climate and topography are consistent across each segment and that a 
segment is designed and constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and materials. 

CRC is based on the unit price for the component type. For pipes, the unit price is multiplied by the asset's length. The unit price for pipes is based on the 
construction material as well as the depth the pipe is laid.
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Note 10 Other matters
Note 10.1 Related party transactions

(a) Responsible Persons

Councillors Cr Julianne (Julie) Arnold Mayor, 10 April 2019 - present
Acting Mayor, 21 February 2019 - 9 April 2019
Deputy Mayor, 8 November 2018 - 20 February 2019
Councillor  8 November 2018 - present

Cr David Munday Mayor, 8 November 2018 - 20 February 2019
Councillor, 1 July 2018 - 20 February 2019

Cr Alistair (Duncan) McFie Mayor, 1 July 2018 - 7 November 2018
Councillor, 1 July 2018 - present

Cr Luciano (Luke) Agati Deputy Mayor, 21 May 2019 - present
Councillor, 8 November 2018 - present

Cr Henry (Jim) Cooper Deputy Mayor, 1 July 2018 - 7 November 2018
Councillor, 1 July 2018 - present

Cr Ian Allan Councillor, 8 November 2018 - present
Cr Frederick (Jim) Benn Councillor, 1 July 2018 - 7 November 2018
Cr David Bowling Councillor, 1 July 2018 - 7 November 2018
Cr Megan Chivers Councillor, 1 July 2018 - 7 November 2018
Cr Thor Clemens Councillor, 8 November 2018 - present
Cr Royce Conley Councillor, 1 July 2018 - 7 November 2018
Cr Robert (Ira) Cooke Councillor, 1 July 2018 - 7 November 2018
Cr Gina Green Councillor, 8 November 2018 - present
Cr Sarina Laidler Councillor, 8 November 2018 - present
Cr Vernon Philbey Councillor, 10 April 2019 - present
Cr Kirsty Russell Councillor, 1 July 2018 - 7 November 2018

General Manager Troy Brice 1 July 2018 - 19 December 2018
Acting General Manager Kate Mauric 10 December 2018 - 30 June 2019

(b) Councillor Remuneration
2019 Short term employee benefits

Allowances

$ $

Mayor 30,892    
Deputy Mayor 16,330    
Councillors 65,294    

Total 112,516  

2018

Allowances

$

Mayor 31,477    
Deputy Mayor 18,587    
Councillors 62,840    

Total 112,904  

$

32,126
18,122
65,873

116,121

1,234
1,792
579

3,605

Local Government elections were held in October 2018 for all Councillor positions. Names of persons holding the position of a Responsible Person at the 
Council at any time during the year are:

0

Vehicles1

$

2 Section 72(1)cb of the Local Government Act 1993  requires the disclosure of expenses paid to Councillors. Expenses reimbursed relate to Councillors travelling on Council-authorised business.

0
0
0

0

-                                   

62,840

112,904

62,840

0

30,892
16,330
65,294

112,516

112,904

0

0

Short term employee benefits

1 Includes total cost of providing and maintaining vehicles provided for private use, including registration, insurance, fuel and other consumables, maintenance cost and parking (including notional 
value of parking provided at premises that are owned or leased and fringe benefits tax).  

0

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Vehicles1 Total Compensation 
AASB 124

$

Expenses2

$

Total allowances and 
expenses section 72

Total Compensation 
AASB 124

$

31,477
18,587

Total allowances and 
expenses section 72

$

31,477
18,587

Expenses2

$

0
0
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Note 10.1 Related party transactions

(c) Key Management Personnel Remuneration

2019 Short term employee benefits Post employment benefits

Remuneration Band9
Number of 
employees Salary1

Short-term 
Incentive 

Payments2 Vehicles3

Other 
Allowances 

and Benefits4
Super-

annuation5

Other long-
term 

Benefits6
Termination 

Benefits7

Non-
monetary 
Benefits8

Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

 $20 001 - $40 000 1 25,331       -               3,205        3,421           1,170      33,127        

 $60 001 - $80 000 1 47,533       -             3,462           3,960        7,604           17,413    79,972        

 $100 001 - $120 000 1 56,457       -             769              2,860        5,908           34,826    100,820      

$140 001 - $160 000 1 122,552     -             4,327           12,981      11,641         -          151,501      

$220 001 - $240 000 1 87,475       -             4,615           1,760        19,658         106,498 220,006      

Employee Remuneration 5 339,348      -              13,173          24,766       48,232          -          159,907   -            585,426       
Non-Employee Remuneration 4 155,716     -               10,529      -               -         -          -           166,245      
Total 495,064     -             13,173         35,295      48,232         -         159,907 -           751,671      

2018 Post employment benefits

Remuneration Band9
Number of 
employees Salary1

Short-term 
Incentive 

Payments2 Vehicles3

Other 
Allowances 

and Benefits4
Super-
annuation5

Other long-
term 

Benefits6
Termination 

Benefits7

Non-
monetary 
Benefits8

Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

 $20 001 - $40 000 2 53,277       -             2,032           -            2,824           -         -          3,423       61,556        

 $40 001 - $60 000 1 57,280       -             -               -            -               -         -          -           57,280        

 $60 001 - $80 000 1 67,627       -             7,382           -            8,115           -         8,646      (17,066)    74,704        

 $140 001 - $160 000 2 226,884     21,902         -            28,523         -         -          26,870     304,179      

Total 405,068     -             31,316         -            39,462 -         8,646      13,227     497,719      

(d) Remuneration Principles

Councillors

Executives

Short term incentive payments
The Council sets fixed performance targets with goals and indicators aligned to the achievement of its approved Annual Plan and Budget Estimates each year.
No short term incentive payments were awarded during the current year.
Termination benefits
Termination payments during the current year included:

9 Some Key Management Personnel did not hold these roles for the entire year. 

6 Employment contracts for key management personnel do not provide for payment of other long-term benefits.

Allowances for councillors, deputy mayor and mayor are set by the Department of Premier and Cabinet (Local Government Division).  
Allowances were indexed on 1 November 2018 after a review by the Tasmanian Industrial Commission. 

1 Gross Salary includes all forms of consideration paid and payable for services rendered, compensated absences during the period and salary sacrifice amounts.

The performance of each senior executive, including the General Manager, is reviewed annually and includes a review of their remuneration package. The terms of 
employment of the General Manager contain a termination clause that requires the General Manager or Council to provide a minimum notice period of up to 26 weeks prior 
to termination of the contract. 
The terms of employment of other senior executives contain similar clauses, but are subject to a minimum notice period of up to 6 weeks prior to termination of the contract 
by Council.
Whilst not automatic, contracts can be extended.

Short term employee benefits

The employment terms and conditions of senior executives are contained in individual employment contracts and specify total remuneration, superannuation, annual and 
long service leave, vehicle and salary sacrifice provisions.  In addition to their salaries, Council may also provide non-cash benefits and contribute to post-employment 
superannuation plans on their behalf.

2 Employment contracts for key management personnel do not provide for payment of short term incentives.
3 Includes total cost of providing and maintaining vehicles provided for private use, including registration, insurance, fuel and other consumables, maintenance cost and fringe benefits tax.
4 Other allowances and benefits includes all other forms of employment allowances (excludes reimbursements such as travel, accommodation or meals), relocation allowance, payments in lieu of 
leave, and any other compensation paid and payable under employment contracts. Subsidised housing is provided to some key management personnel according to the provisions of their respective 
employment contracts.
5 Superannuation means the contribution to the individual's superannuation fund.  

7 Termination benefits include all forms of benefit paid or accrued as a consequence of termination. 
8 Non-monetary benefits include annual and long service leave movements . Subsidised housing, where payable under employment contracts, in included in Short-term employment benefits: Other 
allowances and benefits.

Non-Employee Remuneration includes external consultants and contractors filling KMP roles during the year for longer than 4 weeks at a time. Payments for these are charged to 
Contractors and Consultants rather than Employee Costs. Council's contract arrangements with these contractors and consultants exclude payment of superannuation, accrual of leave 
and termination benefits. Where Council has provided housing, equivalent value has been disclosed in Other Allowances and Benefits.

Termination payments were paid to three key management personnel during the year. The aggregated total termination payments for the three personnel was $208,091. 
Specific payments of $169,732 for termination were disclosed at Note 3.1. The balance of payments at the time of termination include accrued annual leave entitlements 
and long service leave entitlements.

36



King Island Council Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 10.1 Related party transactions

(e) Transactions with subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Council does not hold any interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) Transactions with related parties 
During the period Council entered into the following transactions valued at $3000 or more with related parties.

Nature of the transaction

Construction - excavation 
works1

Construction - sealing works2

Sale of raw materials3

Purchase of services 4

Sale of raw materials 5

(g) Loans and guarantees to/from related parties

(h) Commitments to/from related parties

(i) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed

- Payment of rates on a primary residence or commercial premises
- Dog registration
- Use  of Council's community facilities, including hire of venues under Council's approved  Fees and Charges Policy

Note 10.2 Special committees and other activities 2019 2018
$ $

King Island Youth Centre Management Committee
Opening Balance 1,514       1,513          
Cash Receipts 1              1                 
Cash payments -           -              
Closing balance 1,515       1,514          

King Island Historical Society
Opening Balance 30,060     26,392        
Cash Receipts 14,962     16,793        
Cash payments (18,969)    (13,125)      
Closing balance 26,053     30,060        

Special committees are seen to be immaterial and therefore not inlcuded in Council's financial statements.
The King Island Youth Centre Management Committee was not active during the year.

$4,470 $0
30-day terms

on invoice $0

$0 -

Provisions for 
doubtful debts 

related outstanding  
balances

The expense recognised during the 
period relating to bad or doubtful 

debts due from related parties

Outstanding balances, 
including

commitments at year end

Most of the entities and people that are related parties of Council live and operate within the municipality. Therefore, on a regular basis, ordinary citizen transactions occur 
between Council and its related parties. Some examples include:

Council has not included these types of transaction in its disclosure where they are made on the same terms and conditions available to the general public.

Amount of the 
transactions during the 

year

In accordance with s84(2)(b) of the Local Government Act 1993,  no interests have been notified to the General Manager in respect of any body or 
organisation with which the Council has major financial dealings.

2 Council was contracted to provide sealing works for Phoenix Community House. A Councillor of Council is a member of the managment committee of the not-for-profit 
entity.  Amounts were billed based on normal rates for such works and were due and payable under normal payment terms.
3 Council supplied aggregate and other raw materials as well as charged tip fees for waste disposal to King Island Constructions which is controlled by a party related to a 
member of Council's KMP. Amounts were billed based on Council's approved Fees and Charges.

$3,000 $0
Council's approved fees & 

charges
1 Council contracted suppy and operation of excavation services from C C Earthscapes Pty Ltd which is controlled by a party related to Councillor. Amounts billed were 
based on normal rates for such works and were due and payable under normal payment terms.

$0 -

$20,383
Council's approved fees & 

charges

5 Council supplied aggregate and other raw materials to Cr F J Benn who was a Councillor of Council at the time. Amounts were billed based on Council's approved Fees 
and Charges.

-

4 Council purchased short term accommodation services for staff and visting consultants and contractors when Council properties were not available. The owner, Cr F J 
Benn, was a Councillor of Council at the time. Amounts billed were based on market rates and due and payable under normal payment terms.

Council has not guaranteed or secured any commitments  to a related party.

$0

$0 -

As at balance date, there were no loans made, guaranteed or secured by Council to a related party.

$436.40 (within 30 day 
terms) $0 -

$25,145 $0
30-day terms

on invoice

$14,350
30-day terms

on invoice

Terms and conditions
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Note 10.3 Other significant accounting policies and pending accounting standards
(a) 

Goods and services tax (GST)

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

(g) 

There was no effect on the carrying values of any assets or liabilities upon adoption of AASB 9.

The nature of adjustments are described below.
(a) Classification and measurement

-

-

-

-
-

Taxation

Contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments

Council is exempt from all forms of taxation except Fringe Benefits Tax, Payroll Tax and the Goods and Services Tax.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the 
Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the 
expense. Receivables and payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST.
Cash flows are presented in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financing activities, 
which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets 
At each reporting date, Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have been 
impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in 
use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the Statement of 
Other Comprehensive Income, unless the asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised directly against 
the revaluation reserve in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation 
surplus for that same class of asset.  For non-cash generating assets of Council such as roads, drains, public buildings and the like, value in use is 
represented by the deprival value of the asset approximated by its written down replacement cost.

Allocation between current and non-current
In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is given to the time when each asset or liability is 
expected to be settled.  The asset or liability is classified as current if it is expected to be settled within the next twelve months, being Council's 
operational cycle, or if Council does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Financial guarantees
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value, and if 
there is material increase in the likelihood that the guarantee may have to be exercised, at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with 
AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets  and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where 
appropriate. In the determination of fair value, consideration is given to factors including the probability of default by the guaranteed party and the 
likely loss to Council in the event of default. 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, but are disclosed by way of a note and, if 
quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

Commitments are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. Commitments are disclosed at their nominal value inclusive of the GST 
payable.

Budget
The estimated revenue and expense amounts in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income represent revised budget amounts and are not 
audited.

Adoption of new and amended accounting standards
In the current year, Council has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards 
Board that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current annual reporting period. These include:

This standard replaces the existing standard, AASB139: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement  and revises classification, 
measurement and disclosure of financial assets and liabilities.  It reduces the number of categories for financial assets and simplifies the 
measurement choices, including the removal of impairment testing of assets measured at fair value. Classification of financial assets is determined 
by Council's business model for holding the particular asset and its contractual cash flows.

Council has applied this standard from 1 July 2018 using a retrospective approach with cumulative catch-up.  This does not require Council to 
restate comparative figures, but does require the presentation of both qualitative and quantitative disclosures for affected items, along with a 
corresponding adjustment to the opening balance of Accumulated surpluses for transitional effects of re-measurement.

The financial assets of Council have been reclassified into one of the following categories on adoption of AASB 9. The classifications are primarily 
based on Council's business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.  The main effects resulting 
from reclassification are as follows:

Trade and other receivables  - classified as 'Loans and receivables' as at 30 June 2018. These are held to collect contractual cash flows and 
give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. These are classified and measured as Financial assets at 
'Amortised cost' beginning 1 July 2018.

Council did not designate any financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss.

Investment in water corporation  - classified as an 'Available-For-Sale' financial asset as at 30 June 2018.  As Council does not hold this equity 
investment for trading purposes, it has made an irrevocable election for this equity instrument to present any subsequent changes in fair value 
in Other comprehensive income.   Under this approach only dividends are recognised in profit or loss.  Council's investment in the water 
corporation is classified and measured as an ‘Equity instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income’ beginning 1 July 2018.

Investments  - are comprised of deposits with financial institutions and classified as  'Held to maturity' as at 30 June 2018. These are held to 
collect contractual cash flows and give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. These are classified and 
measured as Financial assets at 'Amortised cost' beginning 1 July 2018.

Council has not designated any financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. There are no changes in the classification and 
measurement for Council’s financial liabilities.
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Note 10.3 Other significant accounting policies and pending accounting standards (continued)

(g) 

In summary, upon the adoption of AASB 9, Council had the following required (or elected) reclassifications as at 1 July 2018:

AASB 139 Category and carrying amount Amortised 
Cost

Fair value 
through profit or 

loss

Fair value 
through OCI

Equity 
instrument at 

fair value 
through OCI

Note
Loans and receivables

Trade and other receivables* 5.3 458,496 458,332 - - -
Held to maturity

Investments 5.2 4,356,395 4,356,395 - - -
Available-for-sale
   Investment in water corporation 4.1 4,977,407 - - - 4,977,407

4,814,727 - - 4,977,407

(b) Impairment of financial assets

(h) Pending Accounting Standards

(i)
The standard has been deferred by AASB 2016-7 Deferral of AASB15 for Not-for-Profit Entities,  until the 2019-20 reporting period.

-

-

-

-

The adoption of AASB 9 has changed Council’s accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing AASB 139’s incurred loss 
approach, with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. AASB 9 requires Council to recognise an allowance for ECLs for all financial 
assets not held at fair value through profit or loss.

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

AASB 9 Category and carrying amount

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2019 reporting periods. Council's 
assessment of the impact of the relevant new standards and interpretations is set out below.

Other grants presently recognised as revenue upfront may be eligible to be recognised as revenue progressively as the associated 
performance obligations are satisfied, but only if the associated performance obligations are enforceable and sufficiently specific. 
Grants that are not enforceable and/or not sufficiently specific, will not qualify for deferral, and continue to be recognised as revenue as soon 
as they are controlled. Council receives several grants for which there are no sufficiently specific performance obligations, for example the 
Commonwealth Financial Assistance Grants.  These grants are will continue being recognised as revenue upfront assuming no change to the 
current grant arrangements.

For Council there will be a significant effect in the treatment of all grants with sufficiently specific performance obligations where the conditions have 
yet to be fulfilled at year end.  Council currently presents unexpended grant income received in note 2.4.  Council's assessment is that the majority 
of the amounts received unexpended for the year, $124544, will be deferred as a liability under AASB15 and progresively recorded as income as 
performance obligations are fulfilled.
Council will apply the standard from 1 July 2019 using a retrospective approach with cumulative catch-up with an adjustment to Accumulated 
surpluses for the difference in accounting treatment on initial adoption.

AASB 15 introduces a five-step process for revenue recognition, with the core principle of the new standard being for entities to recognise revenue 
to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration (that is, payment) to which the entity expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Accounting policy changes will arise in the timing of revenue recognition, treatment of contracts costs and contracts which contain a financing 
element.
Council has analysed the new revenue recognition requirements noting that future impacts include:

Depending on the respective contractual terms, the new requirements of AASB 15 may result in a change to the timing of revenue from sales 
of goods and services such that some revenue may need to be deferred as a liability to a later reporting period to the extent that Council has 
received cash, but has not met its associated performance obligations, (a promise to transfer a good or service).  

Grants received to construct non-financial assets controlled by Council will be recognised as a liability, and subsequently recognised 
progressively as revenue as Council satisfies its performance obligations under the grant. At present, such grants are recognised as revenue 
upfront.

Adoption of new and amended accounting standards (continued)

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Upon adoption of AASB 9 no additional impairment losses were recognised on any financial assets.
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Note 10.3 Other significant accounting policies and pending accounting standards (continued)

(h) Pending Accounting Standards (continued)

(ii) AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities
This standard has been deferred until the 2019-20 reporting period.

(iii)

AASB 1058 supersedes all the income recognition requirements relating to councils, previously in AASB 1004 Contributions.  The timing of income 
recognition under AASB 1058 depends on whether a transaction gives rise to a liability or other performance obligation, or a contribution by 
owners, related to an asset (such as cash or another asset) received.
AASB 1058 applies when Council receives volunteer services or enters into other transactions in which the consideration to acquire an asset is 
significantly less than the fair value of the asset, and where the asset is principally to enable Council  to further its objectives. In cases where 
Council enters into other transactions, Council recognises and measures the asset at fair value in accordance with the applicable Australian 
Accounting Standard (e.g. AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment ).

If the transaction is a transfer of a financial asset to enable Council to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset to be controlled by 
council (i.e. an in-substance acquisition of a non-financial asset), Council recognises a liability for the excess of the fair value of the transfer over 
any related amounts recognised. Council will recognise income as it satisfies its obligations under the transfer, similarly to income recognition in 
relation to performance obligations under AASB 15 as discussed above.
Where the asset acquired is leased at a "Peppercorn" rate, Council is required to recognise the leased asset at its fair value, the remaining lease 
liability and the balance as income.  These leased right-of-use assets have not previously been recognised. Council assesses that any impact will 
be immaterial.
AASB 1058 also encompasses non-contractual statutory income such as rates, taxes and fines.  Council currently recognises income when 
received.  Under AASB 1058, income is recognised when the taxable event has occurred.  An impact for Council is that prepaid rates received prior 
to the beginning of a rating period, will now be recognised as a financial liability until the commencement of that rating period.  Council has 
assessed these requirements and determined that any impact will be immaterial.

AASB 1058 requires the recognition of Volunteer services where they would have been purchased if not donated and the fair value of those 
services can be reliably measured.  Council has assessed these requirements and determined that any impact will be immaterial.
Council will apply the standard from 1 July 2019 using a retrospective approach with cumulative catch-up with an adjustment to Accumulated 
surpluses for the difference in accounting treatment on initial adoption.

AASB 16 Leases
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Council will apply the standard from 1 July 2019. 
Exemptions allow councils to apply AASB 117 for the 30 June 2019 reporting year. 
AASB 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the 
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligations to make lease payments.
AASB 16 will result in most of Council's operating leases being brought onto the statement of financial position. There are limited exceptions 
relating to short-term leases and low-value assets which may remain off the balance sheet.  Council's existing lease commitments are disclosed in 
Note 8.6.
The calculation of the lease liability will take into account appropriate discount rates, assumptions about the lease term, and increases in lease 
payments. A corresponding right to use assets will be recognised, which will be amortised over the term of the lease. Rent expense will no longer 
be shown. The profit and loss impact of the leases will be through amortisation of the lease asset and interest charges. Council's current operating 
lease expenditure is shown at Note 3.5.  In the Statement of Cash Flows lease payments will be shown as cash flows from financing activities 
instead of operating activities.

Lessor accounting under AASB 16 remains largely unchanged. For finance leases, the lessor recognises a receivable equal to the net investment 
in the lease. Lease receipts from operating leases are recognised as income either on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis where 
appropriate.

All other Australian accounting standards and interpretations with future effective dates are either not applicable to Council's activities, or have no material 
impact.

Council will apply the standard from 1 July 2019 using a retrospective approach with cumulative catch-up with an adjustment to Accumulated 
surpluses for the difference in accounting treatment on initial adoption. Council has assessed these requirements and determined that any impact 
will be immaterial.
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Note 10.4 Significant Business Activities

2019 2018 2019 2018
$ $ $ $

Revenue
Reimbursements -                 -                 10,666           10,885          
User Charges -                 -                 388,507         442,084        
Grants 1,413,011      1,492,069      372,997         -                
Other 458,154         469,589         28,117           40,969          
Total Revenue 1,871,165      1,961,658      800,287         493,938        

Expenditure

Direct
Employee Costs 231,101         154,242         207,922         110,773        
Materials and Contacts 718,392         494,743         447,420         223,694        
Interest -                 -                 14,372           17,646          
Other 440                876                126,098         90,804          

Indirect
Engineering & Administration -                 177,356         -                 35,223          
Total Expenses 949,933         827,217         795,812         478,140        

Notional cost of free services received

Capital Costs
Depreciation and amortisation 860,292         838,926         427,045         418,491        
Opportunity cost of capital 2,179,411      2,379,173      550,702         636,491        

Total Capital Costs 3,039,703      3,218,099      977,747         1,054,982     

Calculated Surplus/(Deficit) 921,232         1,134,441      4,475             15,798          
Tax Equivalent rate 30% 30% 30% 30%
Taxation equivalent 276,370         340,332         1,343             4,739            

Competitive neutrality costs 276,370         340,332         1,343             4,739            

Accounting policy

Significant business activities

The operating capital and competitive neutrality costs of the Council's significant business activities:

Roads Streets & Bridges Aerodrome

Council is required to report the operating, capital and competitive neutrality costs in respect of each significant business activity undertaken 
by the Council. Council's disclosure is reconciled above.  
Council has determined, based upon materiality, that Roads, Streets and Bridges and operation of the Aerodrome as defined above are 
considered significant business activities. Competitive neutrality costs include notional costs i.e. income tax equivalent, rates and loan 
guarantees. In preparing the information disclosed in relation to significant business activities, the following assumptions have been applied:
•   council rates and land tax are included in direct expenditure.
•  Opportunity cost of capital is calculated using a rate of return of 5.71%.
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Note 10.5 Benchmark 2019 2018 2017 2016
$ $ $ $

(a) Underlying surplus or deficit
Net result for the year (470,638)      169,541       724,233       837,371       
Less non-recurrent income
Capital Grants (646,940)      (517,006)      (532,898)      (793,949)      
Insurance Recovery (175,000)      (46,953)        -               -               
Contributions and donated assets -               -               (154,092)      (189,663)      
Financial Assistance Grants:

Received in current fiinancial year but referable 
to the subsequent financial year (979,492)      (899,143)      (865,282)      -               
Received in the prior financial year but referable 
to the current financial year         899,143         865,282                   -           792,451 

Underlying surplus/deficit >0 (1,372,927)   (428,279)      (828,039)      646,210       

(b) Underlying surplus ratio
Underlying surplus or deficit (1,372,927)   (428,279)      (828,040)      646,211       
Recurrent income* 7,605,424    7,232,610    6,386,634    6,030,720    

Underlying surplus ratio % 0.00% (18.05%) (5.92%) (12.97%) 10.72%

(c) Net financial liabilities
Liquid assets less 7,065,518    7,358,718    6,791,194    4,699,077    
total liabilities 2,361,667    2,670,267    2,285,078    1,705,222    
Net financial liabilities >0 4,703,851    4,688,451    4,506,116    2,993,855    

(d) Net financial liabilities ratio
Net financial liabilities 4,703,851    4,688,451    4,506,116    2,993,855    
Recurrent income* 7,605,424    7,232,610    6,386,634    6,030,720    

Net financial liabilities ratio % 0% - (50%) 62% 65% 71% 50%

(e) Asset consumption ratio

Property
Depreciated replacement cost 2,499,514    2,524,571    2,720,027    3,010,882    
Current replacement cost 3,773,385    3,733,219    3,942,126    4,303,410    

Asset consumption ratio % 40% - 60% 66% 68% 69% 70%

Plant and Equipment
Depreciated replacement cost 2,078,053    1,903,543    1,981,883    2,165,407    
Current replacement cost 4,781,107    4,533,997    4,885,279    5,027,400    

Asset consumption ratio % 40% - 60% 43% 42% 41% 43%

Roads
Depreciated replacement cost 38,051,729  38,284,894  37,846,517  37,888,708  
Current replacement cost 70,017,881  69,549,029  68,430,547  67,792,633  

Asset consumption ratio % >60% 54% 55% 55% 56%

Management indicators

Non-recurrent income is income received specifically for new and upgraded assets, phsical resources free of charge or other 
income of a capital nature.

This ratio indicates the net financial obligations of Council compared to its recurrent income.

An asset consumption ratio has been calculated in relation to each asset class required to be included in the long-term strategic asset 
management plan of Council.

This ratio serves as an overall measure of financial operating effectiveness.

This measure shows whether Council's total liabilities can be met by its liquid assets.
Council's total liabilities can be met by its liquid assets. 
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Note 10.5 Management indicators (cont.) 2019 2018 2017 2016
$ $ $ $

(e) Asset consumption ratio (continued)

Bridges
Depreciated replacement cost 3,402,877    3,534,392    3,667,740    3,799,256    
Current replacement cost 7,627,707    7,627,707    7,627,706    7,627,706    

Asset consumption ratio % 40% - 60% 45% 46% 48% 50%

Aerodrome
Depreciated replacement cost 8,850,000    10,942,418  11,351,492  11,605,384  
Current replacement cost 25,978,929  18,152,393  18,142,976  17,981,605  

Asset consumption ratio % 40% - 60% 34% 60% 63% 65%

Drainage
Depreciated replacement cost 690,616       676,142       606,665       632,137       
Current replacement cost 2,098,127    2,056,894    1,961,944    1,961,944    

Asset consumption ratio % 40% - 60% 33% 33% 31% 32%

Recreation and Community Facilities
Depreciated replacement cost 713,702       558,094       475,357       381,619       
Current replacement cost 1,050,857    880,080       782,529       688,404       

Asset consumption ratio % 40% - 60% 68% 63% 61% 55%

Waste Management
Depreciated replacement cost 531,210       543,770       359,202       371,762       
Current replacement cost 672,452       672,452       475,325       475,325       

Asset consumption ratio % 40% - 60% 79% 81% 76% 78%

(f) Asset renewal funding ratio

(g) Asset sustainability ratio

Capex on replacement/renewal of existing assets 1,317,469    1,487,418    937,702       1,804,263    
Annual depreciation expense 1,697,796    1,598,189    1,606,445    1,625,953    

Asset sustainability ratio % 100% 78% 93% 58% 111%

2019 2018
$ $

Analysis of capital expenditure
Replacement/renewal of existing assets 1,317,469    1,487,418    
New assets 268,486       466,161       
Total 1,585,955    1,953,579    

This ratio indicates the level of service potential available in Council's existing asset base.

This ratio calculates the extent to which Council is maintaining operating capacity through renewal of their existing asset base.

Asset renewal funding ratios are unable to calculated as Council is yet to adopt a long term asset management plan This is currently 
under development
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Note 10.6 Material Budget Variations

Revenues
1

2

3 Private works

4 Other revenues

Expenses

1 Contracts, materials and services

Revenue income was up $199,727 on budget (38.5%) primarily due to an insurance claim of $175,000 for storm damage to the Naracoopa Jetty 
received by Council during the year. 

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Council’s original budget was adopted by the Council in June 2018. The original projections on which the budget was based have been affected by 
a number of factors. These include State and Federal Government decisions including new grant programs, changing economic activity, the 
weather, and by decisions made by the Council. Material variations of more than 10% are explained below.

The variance of $1,063,898 (41.4%) over budget was caused by several factors. These included the higher costs of materials and contractors 
incurred in earning unbudgeted revenue from Private Works (see Revenue commentary above), overspend in Plant Operations, freight costs for 
Inventory, additional consulting expenses that offset new grants awarded during the year and the need for short-term resources to fill unexpected 
professional vacancies during the year.

Revenue from Private Works was up $767,309 (116%) compared to 2018-19 budget mainly due to additional works undertaken by Council for 
external customers that were not anticipated when the original budget was developed.

User Fees
Council's 2018-19 budget approved a new model for Airport Users Fees which was subsequently rescinded in August 2018 due to airline resistance. 
As a result, Council reverted to the same cost structure used in 2017-18. This resulted in a reduction in revenue of $470,000 (44%) in User Fees for the 
year.

Grants
The variations for operating capital was up $1,142,947 on budget (113%).A significant proportion of this was due to the early receipt of 
Commonwealth funding. The Australian Commonwealth Government provides Financial Assistance Grants to Council for general purpose use and 
the provision of local roads.   Since 2011-12 the Commonwealth has been making early payment of the approximate equivalent to two quarterly 
instalments for the following year. In accordance with AASB1004 Contributions,  Council recognises these grants as revenue when it receives the 
funds and obtains control.  The effects of the early receipt of instalments each year has resulted in Commonwealth Government Financial 
Assistance Grants being above that originally budgeted in 2018-19 by $979,000 (2017-18 $899,143).  This has impacted the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income resulting in the Surplus/(deficit) being higher in both years by these amounts.  With fewer instalments due to be received in 
2018-19, the reverse effect may occur, however future payments remain at the Commonwealth's discretion.

Additionally, several other grants were awarded to Council during the year that were not originally budgeted. Offsetting these were higher expenses 
to acquit the grant funds.
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Date:  4 November 2019

 Certification of the Financial Report

Greg Alomes
General Manager

The financial report presents fairly the financial position of the King Island Council as at 30 June 2019 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the 
year then ended, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993  (as amended), Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements 
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board.
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•  Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board
•  the Local Government Act 1993

Date:  4 November 2019

 Management Certification of the Financial Report

Carolyn Pillans
Director Finance

The accompanying financial statements of the King Island Council are in agreement with the relevant accounts and records and have been prepared in 
compliance with:

I believe that, in all material respects, the financial statements present a view which is consistent with my understanding of Council's financial position as at 30 
June 2019 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended.

At the date of signing this certification, I am not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial statements misleading or 
inaccurate.

The completed Financial Statements Preparation and Submission Checklist is enclosed.
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